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G_eneral Information

Establishment:

MTHCS was established in 1997, as one of seven Multi-Purpose Services established in Victoria under Part
4A of the Health Services Act (HSA). In 2011 Sea Lake and District Health Service merged with MTHCS.

The Minister responsible for MTHCS is the Minister for Health.

Responsible Ministers:

Minister for Health: Minister for Disability, Ageing and Carers
The Hon Mary-Anne Thomas The Hon. Lizzie Blandthorn
From 1 July 2023 to 30 June 2024 From 1 July 2023 to 2 October 2023
Minister for Ambulance Services Minister for Disability/Minister for Children
The Hon. Gabrielle Williams The Hon. Lizzie Blandthorn
From 1 July 2023 to 2 October 2023 From 2 October 2023 to 30 June 2024
The Hon Mary-Anne Thomas
From 2 October 2023 to 30 June 2024 Minister for Ageing

The Hon. Ingrid Stitt
Minister for Mental Health From 2 October 2023 to 30 June 2024

The Hon. Gabrielle Williams

From 1 July 2023 to 2 October 2023
The Hon. Ingrid Stitt

From 2 October 2023 to 30 June 2024

Responsible Bodies Declarations:

In accordance with the Financial Management Act 1994, | am pleased to present the report of operations
for the Mallee Track Health and Community Service for the year ending 30 June 2024.

Mary Rydberg Board Chair "p_ A E Ag t" .
Mallee Track Health and Community Service, Ouyen i, rdr.k"
Date: 17/7/24 5
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About Us

do not lve i o

Our Vision Our Mission

Leading our communities to To provide people of all ages with
excellence in integrated health and access to quality, person-centred
community services. care in the Mallee.

Our Values

ACCOUNTABILITY
We define our expectations and are accountable for our actions.

EXCELLENCE
We set high standards and continually strive to improve on them.

COMPASSION
We treat everyone with care, respect and dignity.

TEAMWORK
We work collaboratively and in the spirit of partnership.
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Our Services

The remit of a Multi-Purpose Service is to respond to the needs of the community and Mallee Track
Health and Community Service has a broad portfolio of services to fulfil that purpose. Services include
Urgent Care; Acute Care; Sub-Acute Care; Residential Aged Care; Mallee Track@Home; Dental Services;
General Practice Primary Care; Allied Health Services; Delivered Meals; Community Transport; Social
Support; Leisure and Lifestyle; Early Years; Rural Outreach and Neighbourhood House.

These services are provided by staff and volunteers across the following locations:

Ouyen - Urgent Care; Acute Care; Sub-Acute Care; Residential Aged Care; Mallee Track@Home;
Dental Services; General Practice Primary Care; Allied Health Services; Delivered Meals; Community
Transport; Social Support; Leisure and Lifestyle; Early Years; Rural Outreach and Neighbourhood
House.

Sea Lake - Urgent Care; Acute Care; Sub-Acute Care; Residential Aged Care; Mallee Track@Home;
General Practice Primary Care; Allied Health Services; Delivered Meals; Community Transport; Social
Support; Leisure and Lifestyle; Early Years; Rural Outreach and Neighbourhood House.

Murrayville - Mallee Track@Home; Allied Health Services; Delivered Meals; Community Transport;
Social Support; Leisure and Lifestyle; Early Years; Rural Outreach and Neighbourhood House.

Underbool - Mallee Track@Home; Allied Health Services; Delivered Meals; Community Transport;
Social Support; Leisure and Lifestyle; Early Years and Rural Outreach
Manangatang - Early Years

We also partner with visiting providers to provide the following services:

Ouyen - Country Hearing; Gooch Chiropractic; RFDS Women's Health Service; Maternity Services
from MBPH; Diabetes Education from Murray PHN; Dietician from Robinvale District Health Service;
Speech Pathology from RFDS; Psychological Therapy Services; Mental Health Services from MBPH.

Sea Lake — Accoustic Health; Speech Pathology from RFDS
Underbool - Nurse Practitioner Primary Care

Murrayville - Nurse Practitioner Primary Care

WOUND CARE
AT THE CLINIC
OR AT HOME

AL the Medical Clinics at Duyen and Sea Lake or you can book the district murss to

come to your own hame by calling the Intake Team on 0427 846 272 and ask for

Malles TrackiHome services. We can get in touch with your doctor to confirm how
yaur wound i healing. This service is Free for Mallee Track Community membars.
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Governance

Board of Directors

CAROL MIODUCHOWSKI

BOARD DIRECTOR

CHAIR OF THE QUALITY, SAFETY
AND CLINICAL RISK COMMITTEE
APPOINTED JULY 2022

MARY RYDBERG
BOARD CHAIR

APPOINTED DEC 2023

JOY LYNCH

BOARD DIRECTOR
CHAIR OF THE COMMUNITY

ADVISORY COMMITTEE
APPOINTED JULY 2016

FRANK PISCIONERI

BOARD DIRECTOR NICK MCDONALD

CHAIR FINANCE, AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

APPOINTED JULY 2021 BOARD DIRECTOR
APPOINTED JULY 2023

ALEXANDER LOOK
BOARD DIRECTOR

APPOINTED JULY 2023

KATHRYN MUNRO JOHN PAPATHEOHARI

VICE CHAIR - BOARD DIRECTOR BOARD CHAIR
FINANCE, AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE JULY - NOVEMBER 2023
JULY 2020 APPOINTED JULY 2021

Finance, Audit & Risk Committee

The finance, audit and risk committee maintain effective financial governance of MTHCS.
The members of this committee are:

Board Members:
Frank Piscioneri,
Kathryn Munro

Board Chair Ex Officio

Attendees:

Matthew Jukes Executive Director Finance & Corporate Services / Deputy Chief Executive Officer MBPB,
Jessica Pisevski Finance Manager MBPH,

Donna Hamilton Accountant MTHCS

Rakesh Nagalla Manager Corporate Services MTHCS

Chief Executive Officer MTHCS

Invitees:

Internal Auditors
External Auditors
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Governance

Management Team

DR FRANCES PEART
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

LYNDAL MUNRO
DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY SERVICES

COMMUNITY SERVICES - Allied Health, Delivered Meals, Community
Transport, Social Support, Leisure and Lifestyle.
EARLY YEARS SERVICES

RURAL CONNECTION - Rural Outreach and Neighbourhood Houses.
DENTAL SERVICES

CASEY CROTHERS

PEOPLE & CULTURE ADVISOR

ROSEMARY CATTANACH
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF NURSING & MIDWIFERY

CLINICAL SERVICES - Urgent Care, Acute and Sub-acute Care,
Residential Aged Care, Mallee Track at Home and Medical Clinics.
PROFESSIONAL LEAD FOR NURSING AND MIDWIFERY.

SHARON MALONEY
COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT ADVISOR

RAKESH NAGALLA

MANAGER OF CORPORATE SERVICES
Administration, Hotel Services and Maintenance & Stores.
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Board Chair & Executive
Officer Report

Welcome to the Annual Report
for Mallee Track Health and
Community Service.

Our commitment to providing people of all ages
with access to quality person-centred care in the
Mallee has remained steadfast, guiding our
efforts and inspiring innovation. In this report,
we reflect on our journey over the past year,
highlighting our progress, celebrating the
dedication of our staff, and outlining our
strategic priorities for the future.

This year marked a period of significant change
in the leadership of Mallee Track Health and
Community Service. We witnessed the departure
of Pam Vallance, our esteemed Executive
Director of Nursing, whose influence was pivotal
in shaping our clinical and residential aged care
services over 35 years of service to the
community. We extend our heartfelt gratitude to
Tracey Wilson for her dedicated service as
interim Chief Executive Officer and to John
Papatheohari for his invaluable contributions as
Board Chair. These transitions have infused our
organisation with new energy and ideas,
reinforcing our commitment to delivering
exceptional healthcare in our rural communities.
We are delighted to welcome Rosemary
Cattanach as the new Executive Director of
Nursing and Midwifery, bringing a wealth of
experience and a fresh perspective to our team.

Accountability

The Board reviewed and updated the bylaws and
provided a draft to the Department of Health for
approval. Aligning our goals with the evolving
needs of our community, the board led the
development of refreshed strategic priorities
through to the end of 2024. We implemented an
operational dashboard to monitor departmental
key performance indicators each month,
ensuring better oversight and performance
tracking.

@ MTHCS

Excellence

We are proud to have achieved NSQHS
accreditation in early 2024, a testament to our
commitment to quality and safety. As part of our
continuous improvement efforts, we have ceased
the ISO accreditation process and decentralized our
quality management system.

Communication with Mallee Track Health and
Community Service employees has enhanced over
the past 12 months with the introduction of the
People and Culture boards located above all Kronos
clocks and the staff newsletter being produced
from within the team rather than an external
consultant.

Compassion

General practice services were expanded with the
creation of a position for a Mildura Base Public
Hospital junior doctor to rotate to the Ouyen
Medical Clinic. Supervision for the junior doctor is
provided by the locum general practitioner and this
has translated into increased access to general
practice appointments for the Ouyen community.
The most impressive collaboration with Mildura
Base Public Hospital was the establishment of the
virtual ward at Ouyen Hospital. A new model of care
was developed to enable Mildura Base Public
Hospital patients to be admitted to the Ouyen
Hospital under the care of the specialist medical
services at Mildura.

Teamwork

Our People Matter Survey achieved the highest
participation rate to date, reflecting the staff's
engagement and commitment to Mallee Track. One
outcome from the survey was the formation of
focus groups to address five key areas - Bullying
and Harassment; Violence and Aggression; Patient
Safety, Learning and Development and Responding
to Stress. The inaugural staff awards ceremony
celebrated the exceptional contributions of our
employees. The event was planned and organised
by staff and Board Directors, managers and staff
enjoyed a wonderful evening of fun and comradery.

Part A - Report of Operations 2023-2024



Board Chair & Executive Officer Report

Integrity

We were very fortunate to participate in the
development and publication of the Northern
Mallee Integrated Partnership Clinical Services
Plan. One of the direct benefits of the plan was
the establishment of an antenatal outpatient
service at Ouyen as an outreach of Mildura Base
Public Hospital maternity services. A significant
improvement for the Sea Lake community was
the repurposing of the Carinya facility to
accommodate the neighbourhood house
activities and other community events.

Transparency

Partnering with Mildura Base Public Hospital for
financial services has resulted in improvement
and enhancement of financial reporting to the
Board. A major upgrade to our financial software
systems has enhanced our financial
management and reporting capabilities. A
complete review of our strategic and operational
risk registers has been undertaken this year,
providing a robust framework for risk
management.

Mary Rudberyg

Mary Rydberg
Board Chair

° MTHCS

This year has been one of transformation and
growth for Mallee Track Health and Community
Service. We have navigated significant changes,
implemented best practice initiatives, and
continued to prioritise the needs of our
community. This has all been possible with the
help of the careful stewardship of the Board, the
skilled decision making of the executive and the
compassion and dedication of the staff. We offer
our heartfelt thanks to them for all that has been
achieved this year. We are confident that the
foundations laid this year will propel us towards
a future of enhanced service delivery and
community health outcomes.

Dy Frances Peart

Dr Frances Peart
Chief Executive Officer
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Aboriginal Cultural Safety

Whilst the number of people in the Mallee Track communities who identify as Aboriginal or Torres
Strait Islander is well below the Mallee average of 8% of total population, there are Aboriginal people
living in our communities. 1.5% of the population of Ouyen, 0.9% of the Sea Lake population and 7.7%
of the Manangatang population identify as Aboriginal or Torres Strait Islander. Aboriginal elders from
Barkindji Country joined us for lunch to talk about how we could develop cultural awareness in staff
to better support the Aboriginal people in our community. Mallee Track Health and Community
Service staff participated in theLoddon Mallee Health Network Research Project: System Reform for
First Nations Communities within EDs and UCCs. The research project is a collaboration between
Loddon Mallee Health Network and La Trobe University.

° MTHCS Part A - Report of Operations 2023-2024



MPS Performance Priorities

Service Plan Progress Outcomes

Leverage Northern Mallee Integrated Partnership Clinical Services Plan Data Analysis to
progress MTHCS demand insights.

The CSP supply side data identified that there were many Mallee Track Community members

accessing inpatient and outpatient services at MBPH. Further exploration of the activity data for
MBPH provided direction for the development of the Clinical Services Capability Statements for
MTHCS. A wound clinic has been established at the Ouyen Medical Clinic to provide these services
closer to home for Mallee Track communities.

Define Board Performance Dashboard

A consolidated view of known metrics and new indicators aligned with strategic priorities.
Composition is:

-Financial (e.g., operating result, labour cost ratio, locum cost ratio)

-Clinical (e.g., accreditation, incident, falls, medications)

-Activity (e.g., Early Years, occupancy, UCC/sub-acute, care close to home)
‘Consumer/Community (e.g., feedback, satisfaction, volunteer)

‘People & Culture (e.g., workforce fulfiiment, PMS, turnover, Workcover)

‘Reform (e.g., partnering, climate action, equitable access)

Financial and Operational Modelling

OPEX and CAPEX budgets modelled including consumer demand, facility occupancy, workforce/EFT,
capacity utilisation and Income optimisation

Reform - Aged Care, Early Years, Mental Health

Service delivery (and grants) options for services assessed to align
with Aged Care and Early Years reform including 'at home' and from
community to residential and end of life care. Mallee Track@Home
model of care developed incorporating MPS funding model, care
closer to home principles, virtual care options across primary, acute
and aged care service delivery.

Consumer Journey

Patient flow data reviewed to identify travel undertaken by MTHCS
community members. Clinical Services Capability framework will
guide development of relevant services closer to home.

Consumer Demand Generation

Existing services and new services promoted to the community
using a range of communication strategies. Clients presenting to
the wound clinic were identified through community consultation.
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Service Plan continued.

Virtual Care Project

Avirtual care pilot was established in partnership with MBPH.

Strategy Execution

An assessment of strategic priority execution capability (organisation structure, workforce, core services,

marketing) was undertaken and changes to the organisational structure were made to enhance
efficiency.

Capital Master Plan

An initial assessment of the Capital Master assets was undertaken. This work will inform strategic
approach to the utilisation of the capital assets.
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MPS Financial & Service
Performance Reporting

Governance and Leadership

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR ORGANISATIONAL
CULTURE

TARGET = RESULT

People matter survey - Percentage of staff with an overall

e . 62% 70%
positive response to safety culture survey questions.

Occupational Health & Safety

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

STATISTICS
The number of reported hazards / incidents for
the year per 100 FTE. 294 267 >7.05
The number of ‘lost time’ standard WorkCover
claims for the year per 100 FTE. 0.01 0.00 2.72
The average cost per WorkCover claim for the 030 0.00 $13
year.
Quality and Safety
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR TARGET RESULT
Health Service Accreditation Full compliance Full compliance
Compliance with cleaning standards Full compliance Full compliance
Compliance with the Hand Hygiene Australia program 85% 91%
Percentage of healthcare workers immunised for influenza 92% 100%
Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey - percentage of 95% positive n/a
positive patient experience responses. experience

Occupational Violence

OCCUPATIONAL VIOLENCE STATISTICS 2023-2024

WorkCover accepted claims with an occupational violence cause per 100 FTE. 0.00
Number of accepted WorkCover claims with lost time injury with an 0.00
occupational violence cause per 1,000,000 hours worked. '
Number of occupational violence incidents reported. 13
Number of occupational violence incidents reported per 100 FTE. 8.8
Percentage of occupational violence incidents resulting in a staff injury, iliness or 0
condition.
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MPS Financial & Service
Performance Reporting cont.

Workforce Data

AVERAGE  AVERAGE

HOSPITAL LABOUR JUNE CURRENT JUNE CURRENT

CATEGORY MONTH FTE 2023 MONTH FTE 2024 EAT?\ZI;S;Y &(Eg-orgzy
Nursing 38.09 37.34 37.94 38.33
Administration and Clerical 26.31 27.89 23.07 28.09
Medical Support 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Hotel and Allied Services 43.44 49.35 35.49 47.61
Medical Officers 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hospital Medical Officers 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Sessional Clinicians 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Ancillary Staff (Allied Health) | 31.32 35.49 35.56 33.21

MPS Funded Flexible Aged Care Places

CAMPUS NUMBER
Flexible high care 50
Flexible low care 35

MPS Utilisation of Flexible Aged Care Places

OUYEN CAMPUS NUMBER OCCUPANCY LEVEL %
Flexible high care 29 52.57%

Flexible low care 27 43.20%

Respite 2 247.40%

TOTAL 58

SEA LAKE CAMPUS NUMBER OCCUPANCY LEVEL %
Flexible high care 19 63.11%

Flexible low care 6 54.20%

Respite 2 46.16%

TOTAL 27
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MPS Financial
& Service
Performance
Reporting

MPS Acute Care Activity

SERVICE TYPE OF ACTIVITY ACTIVITY 2023-2024
Medical inpatients Bed days 106
Urgent care Presentations 801

MPS Primary Health Care Activity

SERVICE ACTUAL ACTIVITY 2023-2024

District Nursing 1457 hours / 1843 occasions / 102 clients
Podiatry including foot care clinics 1224 hours / 2242 occasions
Occupational Therapy 460 hours / 539 occasions
Physiotherapy (including Hydrotherapy) 356 hours / 652 occasions
Exercise groups 1602 hours / 1906 occasions
Community Social Support 12048 hours community
Volunteer Transport 1716 trips

Delivered Meals 7056 DM /241 CM

Speech Therapy in partnership with RDHS 817 occasions

Rural Outreach Worker 134

Registered Volunteer 132

Kindergarten 70

Child Care 126
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Disclosures
Required
Under

Legislation

Achievements Under Social Procurement Strategy

Mallee Track health and Community Service has prioritized 3 Social Procurement Framework Objectives in
2023-2024 financial year - Opportunities for Victorians with disability, Opportunities for disadvantaged
Victorians, and Sustainable Victorian social enterprises and Aboriginal business sectors. During this
Financial year MTHCS has engaged with 1 social benefit supplier with a spend of $1184.00 in total.

MTHCS has engaged CrimCheck for obtaining police checks for staff and volunteers. CrimCheck is an
accredited provider of National Criminal History Checks with Australian Criminal Intelligence Commission
(ACIC). The CrimCheck Ltd service is provided by a not-for-profit organization to benefit other not-for-
profits. Any surplus they make is returned to the community.

Asset Management Accountability Framework

Tae
—

by g

Financial Sustainability

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR TARGET ACTUAL
Operating results ($m) 0.301 ($0.398)
Trade creditors 60 days 57 days
Patient fee debtors 60 days 22 days
Adjusted current asset ratio 0.7 1.10

Number of days available cash 14 days 99 days
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Disclosures Required Under Legislation

Financial Information - Five Year Comparison

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR 2024-23  2022-23  2021-22  2020-21  2019-20

Operating results (398) 1396 2426 922 348
Total revenue 21,968 22,208 21,064 18,759 17,445
Total expenses (24,908) (23,278) | 20,826 20,349 19,412
Net results from transactions (2,940) (1,070) 238 (1,590) (1,947)
Total other economic flows 147 158 81 225 (15)
Net result (2,793) (912) 319 (1,365) (1,982)
Total assets 79,936 50,431 51,041 43,321 44,455
Total liabilities 12,569 11,457 11,155 10,093 9,923
Net assets/Total equity 67,367 38,974 39,886 33,228 34,532

Reconciliation of NET Result from Transactions & Operating Result

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR RESULT 2024

Operating results (398)
Capital purpose income 294
Specific income 59
COVID-19 state supply arrangements: Assets received free of

charge for nil consideration under the State Supply N/A
Assets received free of charge N/A
Expenditure for capital purpose (305)
Depreciation and amortisation (2,563)
Impairment of non-financial assets N/A
Finance costs (other) (27)
Net result from transactions (2,940)
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Disclosures Required Under Legislation

Information & Communication Technology Expenditure

BUSINESS AS USUAL (BAU) NON-BUSINESS AS USUAL (NON-
ICT EXPENDITURE BAU) ICT EXPENDITURE

Total = Operating Expenditure & Operational Capital
Total (excluding GST) Capital Expenditure (excluding expenditure expenditure
GST) (a)+(b) (excluding GST) (a) (including GST) (b)

$792,405 $0 $0 $0

Disclosure & Review Study Expenses

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR TARGET ACTUAL
Feasibility studies 0 0
Scoping studies 0 0
Audits / reviews 0 0
Research and development 0 0
Inquiries and investigations 0 0
Impact / evaluation studies 0 0

Consultancies Information

TOTAL
CONSULTANT PURPOSE OF APPROVED EEZEEZITURE FUTURE
CONSULTANCY PROJECT FEE (EX-GST) EXPENDITURE
(EX-GST)
) ) Communications
Tribal Media | | Engagement | N/A N/A N/A $8,800 $0
Makers
Consultant
Des Travis Home Model of | ), N/A N/A $5,500 $0
Care
) Early Childhood
Local Logic Workforce Plan N/A N/A N/A $13,230 $0
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Disclosures Required Under Legislation

FRD 24 - Indicator Related to Green House Gas Emissions

ELECRICITY USE

STATIONARY ENERGY

EL1 Total electricity
consumption segmented by
source [MWh]

EL2 Total On site-electricity
generated [MWh]

EL3 Total On-site installed
generation capacity [MW]

EL4 Total electricity offsets
[MWh]

F1 Total fuels used in
buildings [M)]

F2 Greenhouse gas
emissions from stationary
fuel consumption [Tonnes
CO2-¢]

873.53

TRANSPORTATION ENERGY

T1 Total energy used in
transportation (vehicle fleet)
M)

206.36

T2 Number and proportion of
vehicles in the organisational
boundary segmented by
engine/fuel type and vehicle

2.03

T3 Total Greenhouse gas
emissions from
transportation (vehicle fleet)

125.43

T4 Total distance travelled
by commercial air travel
(passenger km travelled for
business purposes by entity

1,636,476

T(opt1) Total vehicle
travel associated with
entity operations

99.1703

T(opt2) Greenhouse gas
emissions from vehicle
fleet [tonnes CO2-e per

@ [tonnes CO2-e] staff on commercial or [1,000 km] 1,000 km]
gory charter aircraft)
760,524.50 Not reported by Eden Suite 51.7225 n/a n/a n/a

TAL ENERGY USE

E1 Total energy usage from
fuels, including stationary
fuels (F1) and transport fuels
(T1) (M1

E2 Total energy usage from
electricity [M)]

E3 Total energy usage
segmented by renewable and
non-renewable sources [M]]

E4 Total: Units of Stationary
Energy used normalised:
(F1+E2)/normaliser

SUSTAINABLE
BUILDINGS AND
INFRASTRUCTURE

B1 Discuss how
environmentally
sustainable design
(ESD) is incorporated
into newly completed
entity-owned buildings

B2 Discuss how new entity
leases meet the
requirement to preference
higher-rated office
buildings and those with a
Green Lease Schedule

239,7000.5

SUSTAINABLE BUILDINGS
AND INFRASTRUCTURE

B3 NABERS Energy (National
Australian Built Environment
Rating system) ratings of
newly completed/occupied
Entity-owned office buildings
and substantial tenancy fit-
outs (itemised)

3,144,716.14248

B4 Environmental
performance ratings (eg.
NABERS, Green Star, or ISCAIS
rating scheme) of newly
completed Entity-owned non-
office building or
infrastructure projects or
upgrades with a value over $1
million

6284607.64

BS Environmental
performance ratings
achieved for Entity-owned
assets portfolio segmented
by rating scheme and
building, facility, or
infrastructure type, where
these ratings have been
conducted

297,717.27

WATER USE

W1 Total units of metered
water consumed by water
source (kl)

Not reported by Eden
Suite

W2 Total units of
metered water
consumed normalised
by FTE, headcount,
floor area, or other
entity or sector specific
quantity

Not reported by Eden
Suite

Not reported by Eden Suite

WASTE AND RECYCLING

WR1 Total units of waste
disposed of by waste stream
and disposal method [kg]

Not reported by Eden Suite

WR2 Percentage of office sites
covered by dedicated
collection services for each
waste stream

Not reported by Eden Suite

WR3 Total units of waste
disposed normalised by FTE,
headcount, floor area, or
other entity or sector specific
quantity, by disposal method

27,437.3388

WR4 Recycling rate [%]

1,708.48

WR5 Greenhouse gas
emissions associated
with waste disposal
[tonnes CO2-e]

GREENHOUSE GAS
EMISSIONS

G1 Total scope one (direct)
greenhouse gas emissions
[tonnes CO2e]

14,546.1

GREENHOUSE GAS

EMISSIONS

Not reported by Eden Suite

0.83

15.88%

NORMALISATION FACTORS

15.91

150.89

G2 Total scope two (indirect
electricity) greenhouse gas
emissions [tonnes CO2e]

G3 Total scope three (other
indirect) greenhouse gas
emissions associated with
commercial air travel and
waste disposal (tonnes CO2e)

G(Opt) Net greenhouse gas
emissions (tonnes CO2e)

1000km (Corporate)

1000km (Non-
emergency)

Aged Care OBD

438.81

NORMALISATION FACTORS

162.27

751.98

SUSTAINABLE
BUILDINGS AND
INFRASTRUCTURE

17,332

ED Departures

FTE

LOS

0OBD

PPT

Separations

SUSTAINABLE BUILDINGS

AND INFRASTRUCTURE

Total Area m2

143

106

17438

17457

19

11,385
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Disclosures
Required Under
Legislation

Building Act 1993
All building works have been designed in accordance with the Department of Health's Capital
Development Guidelines and comply with the Building Act 1993 (Vic), Building Regulations 2006 (Vic)
and Building Code of Australia, relevant at the time of works. All contractors are appropriately
qualified. There were no Occupancy Permits issued during the financial year. There were no Building
Permits issued during the financial year.

Public Interest Disclosure Act 2012

The Public Interest Disclosure Act 2012 (Vic) enables people to make disclosures about improper
conduct within the public sector without fear of reprisal. The Public Interest Act aims to ensure
openness and accountability by encouraging people to make disclosures and protecting them when
they do. MTHCS complies with the requirements of the Public Interest Disclosure Act 2012 and did not
receive any disclosures in the 2023-24 financial year. Members of the public wishing to access copies
of procedures can apply in writing to the Chief Executive Officer, Dr Frances Peart at MTHCS.
Information can be found at: www.mthcs.com.au.

National Competition Policy (NCP)

All competitive neutrality requirements were implemented and met in accordance with National
Competition Policy (NCP). MTHCS is compliant with the National Competition Policy (NCP), including
compliance with the requirements of the policy statement, Competitive Neutrality Policy Victoria and
any subsequent reforms.

Local Jobs First Act 2003

In 2023-2024 there were no contracts requiring disclosure under the Local Jobs First Policy.

Financial Management Act 1994 (Vic) In accordance with the Direction of the Minister for Finance part
9.1.3 (iv), information requirements have been prepared and are available to the relevant Minister,
Members of Parliament and the public on request.

Safe Patient Care Act 2015 (Vic)
MTHCS has no matters to report in relation to its obligations under section 40 of the Safe Patient Care
Act 2015.

Environmental Performance

MTHCS remains committed to improving our environmental impact and strives to provide health care
in an environmentally sound and sustainable manner. MTHCS will ensure that environmental
sustainability is a high priority for the future of our master plan project.
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Disclosures Required Under Legislation

Carers Recognition Act 2012

MTHCS recognises and values the unique relationship between clients and their carers and operates
in an environment responsive to all parties and applies the overarching principles of the Carer's
Recognition Act 2012 (Vic). MTHCS has taken all practical measures to comply with its obligations
under the Act.

These include:

« promoting the principles of the Act to people in care relationships who receive our services and to
the wider community (e.g. distributing printed material about the Act at community events or service
points; providing links to state government resource materials on our website; providing digital and/or
printed information about the Act to our partner organisations)

* ensuring our staff have an awareness and understanding of the care relationship principles set out
in the Act (e.g. developing and implementing a staff awareness strategy about the principles in the Act
and what they mean for staff; induction and training programs offered by the organisation include
discussion of the Act and the statement of principles therein)

* considering the care relationships principles set out in the Act when setting policies and providing
services (e.g. reviewing our employment policies such as flexible working arrangements and leave
provisions to ensure that these comply with the statement of principles in the Act; developing a
satisfaction survey for distribution at assessment and review meetings between workers, carers and
those receiving care)

* implementing priority actions in Recognising and supporting Victoria's carers: Victorian Carer
strategy 2018-22.

Freedom of Information Action Act 1982

MTHCS processed ten (10) requests during the 2023-24 reporting period (2 were carried over from
2022-23). The majority of requests received were from Legal Representatives on behalf of members of
the public. Other requests processed included Subpoenas, Summons, WorkCover requests and
Coroner's requests.

Access to documents and records held by MTHCS may be requested under the Freedom of
Information Act 1982. Members of the public wishing to access documents can apply in writing to:

Freedom of Information Officer

Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Rosemary Cattanach

PO Box 130

Ouyen Vic 3490
rcattanach@mthcs.vic.gov.au

Payment of Application Fee can be made by Direct Deposit
or Cheque to:

Mallee Track Health and Community Service

BSB: 013756

Account No: 290605963
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Disclosure Required Under Legislation

Gender Equality Act 2020
The Mallee Track Health and Community Service Gender Equality Action Plan (GEAP) was approved by
the Commission for Gender Equality on the 20th June 2022.

MTHCS's Gender Equality Objective is for, “our workforce to complement the diversity of the
community we serve and engage with by creating a working environment and conditions in which we
operate, learn, work and age in as a focus of all action plans and strategies”.

In order to achieve this objective, MDHS has focussed on 3 key priority areas, being:

- Priority 1 The MTHCS workplace is a sector-wide gender equality leader where all women and gender
diverse people, with intersectional characteristics, are acknowledged, celebrated and recognised in a
way that supports people to succeed.

- Priority 2 MTHCS applies inclusive and bias-free practices when assessing its talent pool to achieve a
gender-balanced workforce with pay equity, while also striving to have a workforce that is increasingly
representative of the local community.

- Priority 3 MTHCS has zero tolerance for sexism, discrimination, bullying and sexual harassment with
all staff empowered to recognise, address and respond to it.

Each of the above key priority areas has specific action plans in place, which directly relate to the 7
indicators of gender equality. The implementation and monitoring of each action plan is undertaken
by the MTHCS Gender Equality Action Plan Committee.

Privacy

MTHCS recognizes, and is committed to, the protection of the privacy of patient, resident, client and
staff information. MTHCS has in place policies to ensure compliance with the Health Records Act 2001
(Vic), Privacy Act 2000 and the Information Privacy Act 2000 (Vic) Patients, residents and clients are
informed of their rights on first contact with MTHCS that all health information collected, and medical
records held in relation to their treatment is respected and confidentially is maintained. Details in
respect of the items listed below have been retained by MTHCS and are available to the relevant
Ministers, Members of Parliament and the public on request (subject to freedom of information
requirements:

* Declarations of pecuniary interests have been duly completed by all relevant officers.

* Details of shares held by senior officers as nominee or held beneficially.

« Details of publications produced by the entity about itself, and how these can be obtained.

« Details of changes in prices, fees, charges, rates and levies charged by the Health Service.

* Details of any major external reviews carried out on the Health Service.

+ Details of major research and development activities undertaken by the Health Service that are not
otherwise covered either in the report of operations or in a document that contains the financial
statements and report of operations.

+ Details of overseas visits undertaken including a summary of the objectives and outcomes of each
visit.

* Details of major promotional, public relations and marketing activities undertaken by the Health
Service to develop community awareness of the Health Service and its services.

* Details of assessments and measures undertaken to improve the occupational health and safety of
employees.

* A general statement on industrial relations within the Health Service and details of time lost through
industrial accidents and disputes, which is not otherwise detailed in the report of operations.

+ A list of major committees sponsored by the Health Service, the purposes of each committee and the
extent to which those purposes have been achieved.

* Details of all consultancies and contractors including consultants/contractors engaged, services
provided, and expenditure committed for each engagement.
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'I'T__

Attestations \
& Declarations

MTHCS FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT COMPLIANCE ATTESTATIONS

I, Mary Rydberg, on behalf of the Responsible Body, certify that Mallee Track Health and Community
Service has no Material Compliance Deficiency with respect to the applicable Standing Directions under the
Financial Management Act 1994 and Instructions.

Mary Rydberg Board Chair
Mallee Track Health and Community Service, Ouyen
Date: 17/7/24

DATA INTEGRITY DECLARATION

I, Dr Frances Peart, certify that Mallee Track Health and Community Service has put it place appropriate
internal controls and processes to ensure that reported data accurately reflects actual performance. Mallee
Track Health and Community Service has critically reviewed these controls and processes during the year.

B Erppess Prard

Dr Frances Peart Accountable officer
Mallee Track Health and Community Service, Ouyen
Date: 16/7/24
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Attestations & Declarations cont.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION

I, Dr Frances Peart, certify that Mallee Track Health and Community Service has put in place
appropriate internal controls and processes to ensure that it has implemented a ‘Conflict of Interest’
policy consistent with the minimum accountabilities required by the VPSC. Declaration of private
interest forms have been completed by all executive staff within Mallee Track Health and Community
Service and members of the board, and all declared conflicts have been addressed and are being
managed. Conflict of interest is a standard agenda item for declaration and documenting at each
executive board meeting.

B Erpepese Poaed

Dr Frances Peart Accountable officer
Mallee Track Health and Community Service, Ouyen
Date: 16/7/24

INTEGRITY, FRAUD AND CORRUPTION DECLARATION

I, Dr Frances Peart, certify that Mallee Track Health and Community Service has put in place
appropriate internal controls and processes to ensure that integrity, fraud and corruption risks have
been reviewed and addressed at Mallee Track Health and Community Service during 2023-24.

B Erpepese Poaed

Dr Frances Peart Accountable officer
Mallee Track Health and Community Service, Ouyen
Date: 16/7/24

COMPLIANCE WITH HEALTH SHARE VICTORIA (HSV) PURCHASING POLICIES

I, Dr Frances Peart, certify that Mallee Track Health and Community Service has put in place
appropriate internal controls and processes to ensure that it has materially complied with all
requirements set out in the HSV Purchasing Policies including mandatory HSV collective agreements
as required by the Health Services Act 1988 (Vic) and has critically reviewed these controls and
processes during the year.

B Empepese Poaet
Dr Frances Peart Accountable officer

Mallee Track Health and Community Service, Ouyen
Date: 16/7/24
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Disclosure Index

The annual report of MTHCS is prepared in accordance with all relevant Victorian legislation. This
index has been prepared to facilitate identification of the Department’s compliance with statutory
disclosure requirements.

LEGISEATION ;ﬁEETEEx:FSIRECTIONS / REPORT OF OPERATIONS :I?EEERENCE
CHARTER &

PURPOSE

FRD 22 Manner of establishment and the relevant Ministers 03
FRD 22 Purpose, functions, powers, and duties 03
FRD 22 Nature and range of services provided 05
FRD 22 Activities, programs, and achievements for the reporting period 09/10
FRD 22 Significant changes in key initiatives and expectations for the future 12/13
MANAGEMENT

& STRUCTURE

FRD 22 Organisational structure 06
FRD 22 Workforce data/employment and conduct principles 14/15
FRD 22 Occupational Health and Safety 14
FINANCIAL

INFORMATION

FRD 22 Summary of the financial results for the year 17718
FRD 22 Significant changes in financial position during the year 17718
FRD 22 OOtp)}zrciit\i/ZQal and budgetary objectives and performance against 17718
FRD 22 Subsequent events n/a
FRD 22 Details of consultancies under $10,000 19
FRD 22 Details of consultancies over $10,000 19
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Disclosure Index

LEGISEATION &EISIL;[FEEFL\IA;II\];IRECTIONS / REPORT OF OPERATIONS :I?SEERENCE
FINANCIAL
INFORMATION
FRD 22 Disclosure of government advertising expenditure n/a
FRD 22 Disclosure of ICT expenditure 19
FRD 22 Asset Management Accountability Framework 17
FRD 22 Reviews and Studies expenditure 19
LEGISLATION
FRD 22 Application and operation of Freedom of Information Act 1982 22
FRD 22 Compliance with building and maintenance provisions of Building Act 1993 21
FRD 22 Application and operation of Public Interest Disclosure Act 2012 21
FRD 22 Statement on National Competition Policy 21
FRD 22 Application and operation of Carers Recognition Act 2012 22
FRD 22 Additional information available on request 22/23
FRD 24 Environmental data reporting 20
FRD 25 Local Jobs First Act 2003 disclosures 21
SD5.1.4 Financial Management Compliance attestation 24
SD5.2.3 Declaration in Report of Operations 03
ATTESTATIONS

Attestation on Data Integrity 24
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Disclosure
Index

REQUIREMENT

LEGISEATION MINISTERIAL DIRECTIONS / REPORT OF OPERATIONS FAGEREFERENCE

ATTESTATIONS
Attestation on managing Conflicts of Interest 25
Attestation on Integrity, fraud, and corruption 25
Compliance with HealthShare Victoria (HSV) Purchasing Policies 25

OTHER

REPORTING

REQUIREMENTS
Reporting of outcomes from Statement of Priorities 2023-2024 14-16
Occupational Violence reporting 14
Asset Management Accountability Framework 17
Gender Equality Act 2020 23
Reporting obligations under the Safe Patient Care Act 2015 21
Reporting of compliance regarding Car Parking Fees (if applicable) n/a
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Part B - Financial Reports

Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Financial Statements
Financial Year ended 30 June 2024

Board member’s, occountable officer’s, and chief finance & accounting officer’s declaration

The attached financial statements for Mallee Track Health and Community Service have been prepared in accordance
with Direction 5.2 of the Standing Directions of the Assistant Treasurer under the Financiol Management Act 19594,
applicable Financial Reporting Directions, Australian Accounting Standards including Interpretations, and other
randatory professsonal reporting requirerments.

We further state that, in our opinéon, the informaticn set ot in the comprehensive operating statement, balance
shieet, statement of changes in equity, cash flow statement and accompanying notes, presents fairly the financial
transactions during the year ended 30 June 2024 and the financial position of Mallee Track Health and Community
Servioe at 30 June 2024,

At the time of signing, we are not aware of any crcemstance which would render any particulars included in the
financial statements to be misleading or inaccwrate,

W authorise the attached financial staternents for issue on 24th September, 2024,

Board member Accountable Officer Chief Finance & Accounting Officer
Iﬂ E! ? Ov Frances Peart [Sep 34, 2024 1740 GET+ L0} . '-"'{'_.' -:l”.
Mary Rydbsrg Dr. Frances Péat Matthew Jukes
ok Fi .
Chalr Chief Executive Officer Sttt nance aTic Accotinting Eticer
[Contract)
Curyen Churyen Mibdura
2dth Septamber, 2024 2dth September, 2024 2dth Septamber, 2024
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Part B - Financial Reports

VAGO

Victorien Auditor Cemaral's Offuce

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Mallee Trock Health and Community Service

Oinian | have awdived the financial report of Malise Track Health and Commumnity Semvice (1he health
service] which comprises the:

- balance shest a5 at 30 bune 3034
COPMPrEne i Opanating stateemant for the yeae then ended
" statement af chanpes in equity Tor the year then ended
- cash Thowy staterment for the year thén ended
- rodes 1o the financad statements, including material accocunting policy information
. board mamber's, accountable officer’s and chief finance & accouning officer’s dedaration.

In rry apindan the financial repart presents faidy, inall material respects, the finandlal position of
the health service as a1 30 June 2074 and its finencial performance and cash Powes for the year
then ended in accandance with the financial reporting reguirements of Part 7 of the Fineaos!
Momagerment Act 1994 and spplicable Australian Accounting Sandards,

Basis for Thave conducted mry sudit in accordance with the Adit Act 1994 which intorperates The

Opinkon Australian Auditing Stamdards, | further describe my responssbliities under that Act and those
standards in the Audtor's Besponsibiities for the Audit of the Fnanciof Repart section of my
repor,

My independence is establshed by the Canahifution Act 1975, My siaff and | are independent of
the health service in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and
Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Prafessional Accountants (the Code) that
ane nebevant 10wy audit af 1he finsndd report in Victedia. My St and | heve alsa lallilled our

ot har ethical respondibilivies in accondance with the Code,

| bl thay the audit evidence | hawe obiained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis

for my opinlon,
Caher The Board of the haalth ssnice i respondible for the Other Information, which comprites the
inforrmation information in e health sendee’s armual repodt for the year ended 30 June 2024, bt does pot

indude the finandal regort and my avditor's report thereon.

Ity opinbon on the financial report does not cover the Cther Information amd accordingly, | do not
express any form of assurance conchusion on the Caker Informatian. However, in connection with
vty Busdit af the fingncsl report, my redponsibility i 1o read The Dther Infarmation and in daing
&, oA Lider whether it i manedally msonsistent with the financial reparn &F The bnoadedge |
obtalmed during the audit, or othersise appears to be materially misstated. I, based on the wark |
have performed, | condiusde there s a maierial missiatement of the Ciher Information, | am
requined to report that fact. | have notking bo repart in this regand.

Board™s The Board of the health serdce is resporsible tor the preparation snd fair presentation of the

resporsibilites  financial report inactordance with Australian Accounting Sandards and the Flaarciol

for the financlal  Manogement Aot 1594, and for such internal control as the Board determines |5 necessary to

repsort enable the preparation of a fnancial report that is free from materlal messtatemsent, whether dus
ta fraud or error.

In preparing the finandial repart, the Board is responsibe for assessing the heafth servioe’s sbility
‘bo continge a5 a going conoem, disclosing, as applicabde, matters related 1o going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting undess it & inappropriate to do so.

Levad 31 [/ 35 Ciollrg Stiewl, Malbourne ¥ 3000
T 03 8407 7000 enguiresiBoodilvcgonoy  wesoudi vic gov.ou
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Part B - Financial Reports

Auditor's
responsibilities
for the audit of
the fimancial

MELBOURMNE
18 Ociober 2024

As required by the dudir dct 1994, my responsibility i< 1o express an opinicn on the financial
report based on the awdiit, My oblecthess for the audit are 10 cbtain reasonable assurance about
witvethvir Thee limancial repon as a whiole is free from matesial mésstatement, whether due 10 frawd
o erros, and 10 issue an auditar's report that indudes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
lewel of assurance, but is mot 2 guarantes that an audit conducted in accordance with the
Aimtralian Audinting Standards will always detect 3 material misstatement when 1 exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud of errer and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to infleence the economic dedsions of uwsers taken
o the basis of this financlal report,

As part of a0 sudt in sccordande with the Australien Audiing Standends, | exercise professionsl
Judgement and malntain professional sceptidsm throughout the audit. | alsoe:

identify and assess the risks of materal misstatement of the financlal report, whether due
10 fraud or erear, design and perform audit procedisnes responsive to those risks, and
abtain awdit ewidence that is sulficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion,
Thee risk of not detecting a material misstatemnent resufting from fraud is higher than for
ani resutiing froem errce, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
mitregresentations, of the override of internal contral

abtain an understanding of Internal control rebrvant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriace in the drcumstances, but not for the purpose of
expreiing an apinien on the elfectivenes of the health serndos’s internal contral,
evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the ressonableness of
accounting estimates and related discloswnes made by the Board.

contlude on the sparogdistenesy of the Bosrd's ume of the going oo bask of
accounting and, based an the audit evidence abtained, whether 2 material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubst on the health
service’s ability to contirue a5 3 going concern, I | conclude that 3 material undertaingy
exlity, | am reguired to draw s1tention in my seditor's repart to the related disdladures in
the financial report or, if such disciosures are inadequate, to madify my opindon. My
conclusions are based on the aedit svidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s
reporl. However, luture events of conditians may cause the heglth service 1o cease 1o
conlinue as a going conoern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and cantent of the inandal repart, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial report represenis the underhing transactions
aned ewenis in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

| ommunicate with 1he Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
thee awdin and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies In internal contrel
thet | identify durirg rry audiv

Q@F;ﬂ;ﬂ(ﬁfhf

Domindkca Ryan
a5 delegole for the Auditer-General af Victorde
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Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Comprehensive Operating Statement
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2024

Revenue and income from transactions
Operating activities

Mon-operating activities

Total revenue and income from transactions

Expenses from transactions
Employee expenses

Supplies and consumables
Fimance costs

Depreciation

Oiher adminisirative expenies
Other operating expenses

Other non-operating expenses
Total Expenses from transactions

Met result from transactions - net operating balance

Other economic flows included in net result

Met gainf{loss) on sale of non-financial assets

Met gainf{loss) on financial instruments

Share of other economic flows fram joint arrangements
Oiher gain/|boss) from other economic flows

Total other economic Aows induded in net result

Met result for the year

Other comprehensive income
terms that will not be reclassified to net result

Changes in property, plant and equipment revaluation surplus

Comprehensive result for the year

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying motes.

2024 2023
Mot 5'000 S'000
21 21,437 21107
21 531 351
21,968 21,458
1 [17,169) {15,105}
31 [L.517] {1,900}
31 {27 (34)
a1 (2,563) (2,545}
31 [2,258) (1,857}
11 (1,374) (1,154}
31 z (3}
{24,908) {22,598)
{2,940) (1,140)
32 91 187
3.2 {4) 1}
3.2 52 70
3.2 8 (28}
147 228
793
43 31,186 .
28,393 {912}
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Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2024

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Recelvables

Cantract agsets

Inwentories

Mon financial physical assets held for sale
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Mon-current assets
Receivables

Property, plant and equipment
Right of use assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Current liabilities
Payables

Contract liabilities
Borrowings

Employee benefits
Crher liabilities

Total eurrent liabilities

Mon-current labilities
Borrowings

Employee benefits

Total non-current labilities

Total abilities

Met assets
Equity
Froperty, plant and equipreent revaluation surplus

Contributed capital
Accumulated deficit

Total equity

This Staterment should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

a MTHCS

Tatal Total

2024 2023

Mote 5'000 5$'000
6.2 12,411 11,938
5.1 281 i
5.2 156
85 82
5.6 14 .
100 194
12,891 12,679
5.1 993 942
4.1(a) 65,296 36,193
4.2 (a) 756 611
67,045 37,752
76,936 50,431
53 1,647 2,013
5.4 446 125
6.1 347 223
33 3,485 3,215
55 5,873 5,052
11,798 10,628
6.1 a77 476
33 294 353
771 829
12,569 11,457
67,367 38,974
43 71,634 40,448
SCE 5,793 9,793
SCE (14,060 {11,267}
67,367 38,974

i_m
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Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Cash Flow Statement
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2024

Cash Flows from operating activithes
DOperating grants from gowernmant
Capital grants fram government - 52ate
Other capital income

Patient fees received

Donations and beguests recened

G5T received from ATO

Interest income received

Other receipts

Total receipts

Employee expenses paid

Fayments for supplies and consumables
Payrrients for medical indemnity indurance
Fayments for repairs and maintenance
Fimance Costs

G5T paid to ATD

Payment for share of rural health alliance
nier payments

Total payments

MNet cash flows from operating activities

Cash Flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Ovher capital receipts

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Met cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of borrowings

Repayment of lease liabilities

Repayment of accommaodation deposits

Receipt of accommodation depasits

Met cash flows provided byf{used in} financing activities

Met increase in cash and cash equivalents held
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

e MTHCS

2024 2023
Note 5'000 $'000
17,407 18,0485
293 126
11 =
2,791 2109
i &0
800 -
531 351
726 1,749
22,567 22,444
[16,305) [14,912)
(1,734) (1,978}
{95} |BE)
1682) [511)
127 (24)
{&T] -
52 -
{3,179) [3,066)
{22,537) (20,5839)

8.1 30 EE

{618 (624)
{13} 2

91 187
(540] (437)
{34} (26)
196 (28}
(2,405) {1,793

3,226 1143
473 631
11,938 11,305

6.2 % IIE

Part B - Financial Reports 2023-2024



Malles Track Health and Community Servics
Statement of Changes In Equity
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2024

Balance 81 30 june 2022

Nt result for the year

Other compreber e intome for The year
Balance a1 30 June 2023

Met result for the year

Dthar somprelsrmive indcems Lor 15 pasr
Balanos at 30 bune 2024

Propacty, Mlang and
Eopilgmiseg
RAewabsation Surpkn  Contributed Capltal  Accumulsted DeficE Tortal
L] 0D SO00 5000
a6 44 5,793 {10.355) 19586
= ' {912} {912)
40,448 9193 {11,267} 974
T . {2,793) 12,793
FL188 - - F1. 186
T EIY 5,793 {14,060} &T.367

Thiis Seamermeeit shoubd be read in conjundction sith the 300ompanmying notes.

Mallee Track Health and Community Service

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2024

Note 1: Basis of preparation

Structure

1.1 Basis of preparation af the financial statements
1.2 Abbreviations and terminology used in the financiol statements

1.3 Joint arrangements

1.4 Material accounting estimates and judgements
1.5 Accounting stondards issued but not yet effective

1.6 Goods and Services Tax (G5T)
1.7 Reporting entity
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Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2024

Note 1: Basis of preparation

These financial statements represent the audited genaral purpose financial statemaents for Mallee Track Health and
Community Service for the year ended 30 June 2024, The report provides users with information about Mallee Track
Health and Community Service’s stewardship of the resources entrusted to it.

This section explains the basis of preparing the finandal statements.

Note 1.1: Basis of preporation of the financial stotements
These financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with

the Financlal Management Act 1994 and applicable Australian Accounting Standards, which include interpretations
lssued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB). They are presented in a manner consistent with the
reqguirerments of AASE 101 Presentation of Financod Statements,

The financial staterments alsa comply with relevant Financial Reporting Directions (FRO=) issued by the Department of
Treasury and Finance [OTF), and relevant Standing Directions {504) authoriced by the Ascistant Treasurer,

Mallee Track Health and Community Service is a not-for-profit entity and therefore applies the additional AUS
paragraphs applicable to a "not-for-prafit” health service under the Australian Accounting Standards,

Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASE has concluded would result in financial
statements containing relevant and reliable information about transactions, events and conditions. Apart fram the
changes in accounting policies, standards and interpretations as noted below, material accounting policies adopted in
the preparation of these finandal statements are the same as those adopted in the previous period.

The financial staterments, except for the cash Row information, have been prepared on an accruals basis and are
based an historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected nos-current
mssets, financial assets and financial liabdlities,

The financial statements have bren prepared on a going concern basis (refer to Mote 8.9 Economic Dependency).

The financial statements are in Australian dollars.

The amounts presented in the finandal statements have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars, Minor
discrepandcies in tables between totals and sum of components are due to rounding.

The annual financial statements were authorised fior issuse by the Board of Mallee Track Health and Commumnity
Service on 24th September, 2024,
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Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2024

Note 1.2 Abbrewiotions and terminalogy wsed in the financial statements
The following table sets out the commaon abbreviations used throughout the financial statements:

Reference Titke
AASH Australian Accounting Standards Board
AASS furstralian Accounting Srandards, which include Interpretations
DH Department of Health
OTF Department of Treasury and Finance
Fhaa, Financial Management Act 1994
FED Financial Reporting Direction
HWAL HNational Weighted Activity Lindt
S0 Standing Direction
VAGD Victorian Acditor General’s Office

Note 1.3 loint arrongemants

Interests in joint arrangements are accounted for by recognising in Mallee Track Health and Community Service’s
fimancial statements, its share of assets and Habibities and any revenue and expenses of such joint arrangements,

Mallee Track Health and Cammunity Service has the 1u|l-:.|wing point arrangements:
= Loddon Mallee Rural Health Alliance (LMRHA])

Details of the joint arrangements are set out in Mote 8.7,
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Mallee Track Health and Community Service
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MNote 1.4 Material accounting estimotes ond judgements
kanagement make estimates and judgements when preparing the financial statements.

These estimates and judgements are based on historical knowledge and best available current information and
assume any reasonakble expectation of future events. Actual results may differ,

Revisions to key estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate (s revised and also in future periods that
are affected by the revision.

The material accounting judgements and estimates used, and any changes thereto, are identified at the beginning of
each sectlon where applicable and relate to the following disclosures:

* Hote 2.1: Revenue and income from transactions
" Mate 3.3: Employes benefits and related an-costs
= Mote 4.1: Property, plant and equipment

¢ Mote d.2: Right-of-use assets

* Hote 4.4: Depreciation

= Mote 4.5: Impairment of assets

* Hote 5.1: Receivahles

* Mate 5.2: Contract assets

= Hote 5.3: Payables

* Hote 5.4: Contract labilities

* Mote 5.5: Other liahilities

= Mote 6. 1{a): Lease liabilities

& Mate 7.4: Fair value determination

Note 1.5 Accounting stondords issued but not yet effective
An assessment of accounting standards and interpretations issued by the AASE that are not yvet mandatarily

applicable to Mallee Track Health and Community Senace and their potential impact when adopted in future periods
is outlined below:

Standard Adoption Date

AASE 3O22-5: Amendments fa

Adopti fthis standard i
Australion Accounting Standards -~  Reporting periods beginning on or after 1 nat Exmunu .:: ;a-..e :T i
Lease Ligbiity in 0 Sole ond January 2024, material impact
Leaseback i

AASE FOZ22-O: Amendments fo
Austrafian Accownting Stendavds —  Reparting periods beginning on or after 1
insurance Contracts in the Public  January 2026

Adoption of this standard is
not expected to have a
rraterial impact,

Sector

AASE 2022-10: Amendments to

Austrolion Accownting Standards - ; . . b The impact (I any) of this
Falr Value Measurement of Non- rpnmn;ﬂgirm:hbepnnlq O At oer L standard has been unable to
Financial Assets of Not-for-Prafit b i be assessed at this time.
Pullic Sechor Entities
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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Note 1.5 Accounting stendards msued but nat yet effective (continued)
There are no other accounting standards and interpretations issued by the AASBE that are not yet mandatorily
applicable to Malles Track Health and Community Senvice in future pericds.

Mote 1.6 Goods and Services Tax {G5T)

Income, expenses, assets and liabilities are recognised net of the amount of G5T, except where the GST incurred is not
recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). In these circurnstances the G5T is recognised as part of the cost
of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense,

Receivabbes and payables in the Balance Sheet are stated inclusive of the amount of GST. The net amount of G5T
recoverable from, or payabde 1o, the ATO is included with ather receivables or payvables in the Balance Sheet.

Cash flows are included in the Cash Flow Statement on a gross basis, except for the G5T compaonents of cash flows
arising from investing and/for financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to the ATO, These GST
components are disclosed as operating cash flows.

Commitments, contingent assets and contingent liakilities are presented on @ gross basis.

Note 1.7 Reporting Entity
The finandal statements Include all activities of Mallee Track Health and Community Senvice,

PAallee Track Health and Commumity Service's principal address is:

28 Britt Street
Ouyen VIC 3490

A description of the nature of Mallee Track Health and Community Servce’s operations and its princlpal activities is
included in the report of operations, which does not form part of these financial statements,
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Note 2: Funding delivery of our services

Malles Track Health and Community Sendce’'s owverall objective is to provide guality health service and to be a leading
regional healtheare provider delivering timely, accewsible, integrated and respansive services 1o local community. Mallee
Track Health and Community Service 5 predominantly funded by grant funding for the provigion of autputs, Malles Track
Health and Community Service aloo receives income fram the cupply of tendces,

Structure
2.1 Revenue and income from transactions

2.2 Fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for nominal consideration
2.3 Other income
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Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

Material judgements and estimates

This section contains the following material judgements and estimates:

Mateénal judgemeants and estimates

Destription

Identifying performance obligations

Determining timing of revenue recognition

Determining timing of capital grant Imcome
recognition

Assets and services received free of charge or for
naminal consideration

Mallee Track Health and Community Service applies material judgment
when reviewing the terms and conditions of funding agreements and
contracts to determine whether they contain sufficently specific and
enforceable performance obligations.

If this criterion is met, the contract/funding agreement is treated as a
contract with a customer, requiring Mallee Track Health and Community
Service 1o recognise revenue as of wihen the health service transfers
promised goods or services (o customers.

1§ this criterion is not met, funding is recognised immediately in the net
result from operations.

Malbpe Track Health and Community Service applies material judgement
to determing when a performance obligation has been satisfied and the
transaction price that is to be allocated to each performance obligation. A
performance obligation is either satisfied at a point in time or over time.

Malkee Track Health and Communéty Service applies material jdgement
to determine when [ts obligation to construct an asset is satisfied. Costs
incurmed i used 1o measure the health service’s progress as this (s
deerned 1o be the most accwrate reflection of the stage of cormpletion

Mallee Track Health and Community Service applies material judgement
to determine the fair value of assets and services provided free of charge
ar for nominal value, Where a reliable market value exists it i used 1o
calculate the equivalent valee of the service being provided, Where no
reliable market value exisls, the serace £ not recognised in the financal
statements.
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Mote 2.1 Revenue and income from transactions

Operating acthvitbes

Revenue from contracts with customers
Government grants (State) - Operating

Fatient and resident fees

Commercial activities '

Total revenue from contracts with customers

Other sources of income

Gowernment grants (State) - Operating

Government grants [Commaonwealth} - Operating
Gowernment grants (State) - Capital

{her capital purpose income

Axgens received free of charge ar far nominal consideration

Other revenue from operating activities
[including non-capital donations)

Total other sources of income

Total revenue and income from operating activities

Non-operating activitbes
Income from other sources
Other interest

Total other sources of income

Total income from non-operating activities

Total revenue and income from transactions

Mallee Track Health and Community Service

Mates to the Financial Statements

for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

MNote

2.11{a)

2.2
2.3

2.3

2024 2023
$'000 5'000
781 1,067
2,574 2,112
175 Z
3,530 3,179
8,512 9,015
8,448 7,593
293 126
1 214
- 141
653 839
17,907 17,928
21,437 21,107
531 351
531 351
531 351

21 968

21,458

! Cammercial activities represent business activities which Mallee Track Health and Community Service enter into to support

their operations.
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Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024
Note 2.1 Revenue and income from transactions (continued)

Mote 2,1(a): Timing of revenue from contracts with customers

2024 2023

$'000 $'000
Mallee Track Health and Community Service disaggregates revenue by the timing
of revenus recagnitian,
Goods and services transferred 1o customers:
At a paint in time 3,530 3,179
Total revenue from contracts with customers 30 179

How we recognise revenue and income from transactions
Gavernment opaerating grants

Ta recognise revenue, Mallee Track Health and Commamity Service assesses each grant to determine whether there is a contract
that is enforceable and has sufficiently specific performance obligations in accordance with AASBE 15: Revenue from Controcts
with Customers,

When both these conditions are satisfied, the health service:
= |dentifies each performance obligation relating to the revenuwe
* recognises a contract liability for its obligations under the agreement
® recopnises revenue as it satisfied its performance obligations, at a point in time or owver time as and when services are
rendered,
If a contract liability is recognised, Mallee Track Health and Community Service recognises revenue in profit or loss as and when
it satisfies its obligations under the contract,

Where the contract is not enforceable and/for does not have sufficiently specific performance obligations, in accordance with
AASE 1058 - Incame flor not-far prafit entities the health service:
= recognises the asset received in accordance with the recognition requirements of other applicable Accounting Standards

(for example, AASE 9, AASE 16, AASE 116 and AaSE 138)
= recognises related amounts (being contributions by owners, lease labilities, financial instrurnents, provisions, revenue or

contract Habiltes from a contract with a customer]), and
= recogrises income immediately in profit or loss as the difference between the initial carrying amount of the asset and
the related amount in sccondance with AA58 1058,

In contracts with customers, the "customer” is typically a funding bady, wha is the party that promises funding in exchange for
Mallee Track Health and Community Service's goods or services, Mallee Track Health and Community Services funding bodies
aften direct that goods or services are to be provided to third party beneficiaries, induding individuals or the community at
large. In such instances, the customer remains the funding body that has funded the program or activity, howewer the delivery
of goods or services to third party beneficiaries is a characteristic of the promised good or service being transferred to the
funding body.
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This policy applies to each of ballee Track Health and Community Service's revenue streams, with information detailed below
relating to Mallee Track Health and Community Service's significant revenue sireams:

Government grant Ferformance obligation

Thie Dental Health Program funding model is activity-based, using the Awstralian
Dental Association service item codes, rather than courses of care. Performance is
measwred in terms of Dental Weighted Activity Undts (DWALYL calculated using
weighted Australian Dental Association itemn codes. Funding is aligned to DAWALS to
ensure that state activity targets are met. Revenue is recognised at paint in time
which s when a patient is treated.

Malles Track Health and Community Services receives block funding under the
Commonweatths MPS and State's SRHS program, These programs #im 1o give

Small Rural Health Service (SRHS) Funding regional and remate communities improved access to a mix of health and aged care
[State Operating Grants) and; services that meet the community needs, more innovative and integrated service
Multi Purpose Service [MPS) Funding delivery, flexible use of funding, improved quality of care for residents and improved
cost effectiveness and long-term viability of services. There are no performance
obligations attached 1o the funding and it is recognised over time, as and when the
funding is received.

Dental Weighted Activity Uinits (DWALFs)

[Commonwealth Operating Grants}

G MTHCS Part B - Financial Reports 2023-2024



Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Mates to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

Note 2.1 Revenue and income from transactions (continued)

Capital grants

Where Mallee Track Health and Community Service receives a capital grant, it recognises a liability for the excess of the initial
carmying amount of the financial asset received over any related amounts (being contributions by owners, lease [iabilitles,
financial instrements, prowvisions, revenue or contract Habilithes arising from a contract with a customer) recognised under other
Australian Accounting Standards.

Incarme i4 recagnised progresshnely as the asoet is constructed which aligng with Mallee Track Bealth and Community Servioe’s
abligation to construct the aiet, The progrestive percentage of costs incurred i3 used 1o recagnise [ncome, a5 this most
accurately reflects the stage of completion.

Patient and resident fees
Patient and resident fees are charges that can be levied on patients for some services they recelve, Patient and resident fees are

recognised at a point in time when the performance obligation, the provision of services, is satisfied, except where the patient
and resident fees relate to accommodation charges. Accommaodation charges are calculated daily and are recognised over time,
ta reflect the persod accommodation is provided.

Commercial activities
Revenue from commercial activities includes items such as consulting room and progerty rental. Commerclal activity revenue is
recognised at a point in time, upon provision of the goods or senvice to the customer.
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Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
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Note 2.2 Fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for nominal consideration

oz 2023

$'000 5'000
Cash donations and gifts - &0
Personal pratective equipment E 81
Total fair value of assets and services received
free of charge or for nominal consideration - 141

How we recognise the fair value of ssets and services received free of charge or for nominal consideration

Donations and bequests
Donations and beguests are generally recognised as income upon receipt (which s when Mallee Track Health and Community

Service usually cbtained control of the asset) as they do not contain sufficently spedific and enforceable performance obligations.
Where sufficlently specific and enforceable performance obligations exist, revenue is recorded as and when the performance
abligation is satisfied,

Personal protective equipment
Under the State Supply Arrangement, Health Share Victoria supplies personal protective equipment to Mallee Track Realth and
Community Service for nil consideration,

Contributions of resources

Mallee Track Health and Community Service may receive resources for nil or nominal consideration to further its abjectives. The
resources are recognised at their fair value when Mallee Track Health & Community Service obtains control over the resources,
irrespective of whether restrictions or conditions are imposed over the use of the contributons.

The exception to this policy is when an asset is received from another government agency or department as a consequence of a
restructuring of administrative arrangements, in which case the asset will be recognised at its carrying value in the financial
staternents of Mallee Track Health and Community Service as a capital contribution transfer.
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Note 2.2 Fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for nominal consideration
{continued)

Violuntary Services

Mallee Track Health and Community Service receives volunteer sendoes from members of the community [n the following areas:

& meals an wheels, community transport, social suppart groups, residential aged care facility visitors, gardening,
advisory groups, awdliaries and special events.
Mallee Track Health and Community Service recognises contributions by volunteers in its financial statements, if the fair value can
be reliably measured and the services would have been purchased had they not been donated.

Mallee Track Health and Community Service greatly values the senvices contributed by volunbeers but it does not depend on
volunteers 10 deliver its services.

Men-cash contributions from the Department of Health
The Department of Health makes some payments on behalf of Mallee Track Health and Community Service as follows:

Bescription

The Department of Health purchases non-medical indemnity insurance for
Mallee Track Health and Community Service which [s paid directly to the

Victarian Managed Insurance Autharity ‘ictorian Managed Insurance Authority. To record this contribution, such
payments are recognised as income with a matching expense in the net result
from transactions.

Lang Sendce Lagve [LSL) revenue & recognised ugon finalisation of
Department of Health rroverments in L5L lizbility in line with the long service leave funding
arrangements with DH,

Q MTHCS Part B - Financial Reports 2023-2024



Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
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Note 2.3 Other income

2024 2023

&'000 5'000
Operating
Recover es - sale of werices 154 132
Medical Clinic Incentive Payments 128 130
Child Care Féed 2 270
Ciiher revenue 150 307
Total other income - Dperating 653 239
Interest 531 351
Total other income 531 351
How we recognise other income
Joint Yenture Alliance Revenue

Owir share aof joint venture alliance revenee is recognised in accordance with the Jadnt Arrangement agreement, with balles Track
Health and Community Service recording aur share of revenue as per note 8.7,

Recowvery Income

Reverue from recovery activithes includes ivems such secondment of staff and provision of suppor sendces 1o ather heatth
services, Recovery activity revenue is recognised at a point in time, upon provision of the goads or service to the customer,

Medical Clinic Incentive Payments, Child Care Fees and Other Revenue
Medical dinic incentive payments, child care fees and other revenue is recorded as revenue when recelved.

How we recognise revenue and income from non-operating activities

Interest Income
Interest revenue is recognised on a time proportionate basis that considers the effective yield of the financial asset, which

aflocates interest over the relevant period.
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Note 3: The cost of delivering our services

This section provides an account of the expenses incurred by the health service in delivering services and outputs, In
Sectson 2, the funds that enable the provision of services were disclosed and in this note the costs associated with the
provision of services are disclosed.

Structure

3.1 Expenses from transoctions

3.2 Other economic flows
3.3 Employee benefits and reloted on-costs

2.4 Superannuation
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Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
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Material judgements and estimates
This section contains the following materiad judgements and estimates:

rallee Track Fhﬂﬁhmunﬂ&fﬁ:lnhnﬂﬂl]wm
classifying its employee benefit liabilities.
Employee benafit Babilities are classified as a current Rability if Mallee Track
Health & Community Servica does not have an unconditional right to defer
payment beyond 12 months, Annual keave, accrued days off and long service
Classifying employee benefit leave entitlements (for staff who have exceeded the minimum vesting period] fall
e into this category. '
Employes benefit Rabilitics are classified as a non-current Bability il Malles Track
Health & Community Service has a conditional right to defer payment beyond 12
maanths. Long service leave entitlements (for staff who have not yet excesded the
minimum westing p-lrhll]-ljillimmh'natpﬂj.

Mallee Track Health & Community Service applies material judgment when
merasuring its employee benefit Kabilities.
Thi health servce applies judgement ta determine when it expects i employes
entithements to be paid,
With reference to historical data, if the health service does not expect
entitlefments to be paid within 12 months, the entitlement i measured at its
present value, being the expected future payments to employees,

Measuring emplayee benefit Expected future paymants inconparate:

lkabilities = an inflation rate of 4.45%, reflecting the future wage and salary levels
= durations of service and employes departures, which are used to determine the
estimated walue of long service leave that will be taken in the future, for

employees who have not yet reached the vesting period. The estimated rates are
bebween 18% to 842,

= discounting at the rate of 4 348%, as determined with reference to market
yields on government bonds at the end of the reporting peried,
Al other entitlements are measured at their nomanal value.

e MTHCS Part B - Financial Reports 2023-2024



Note 3.1 Expenses from transactions

Salaries and wages

On-costs

Agency eapenies

Fee for service medical alficer expenses
Workcover premium

Total employee expenses

Dirug supplies

Medical and surgical supplies (including Prostheses)
Dther supplies and consumables

Total supplies and consumables

Fimance costs
Total finance costs

Other administrative expenses
Total other administrative expenses

Fued, light, power and water
Repairs and maintenance
Maintenance conlrscts

Medical indemnity insurance
Expenditure for capital purposes
Total other operating expenses

Total operating expense

Depreciation
Total depreciation

Bad and doubtful debt expense
Total other non-operating expenses

Total non-operating expense

Total expenies from transactsons

Malkee Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

2024 2023
Note $'000 $'000

12,550 11,856

1,360 1,228

1,942 950

1,045 955

272 116

17,169 15,105

16 16

974 1,400

527 484

1,517 1,900

27 34

27 34

2,258 1,857

2,258 1,857

292 271

522 395

160 116

95 88

305 284

1,374 1,154

22,345 20,050

4.4 2,563 2,545

2,563 2,545

3

. 3

2,563 2,548

908 12,598
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Mallee Track Health and Community Service
MNotes to the Financial Statements

for the financial year ended 30 June 2024
Note 3.1 Expenses from transactions

How we recognise expenses from transactions

Expense recognition
Expenses are recognised as they are inourred and regorted in the financial year to which they relate,

Employee expenses
Employee expenses include:
" Salaries and wages (including fringe benefits tax, leave entithements, termination payments)
= On-costs
= Agency BXpEnses
& Fee for service medical officer expenses
= Wark cover premiums,

Supplies and consumables
Supplies and consumable costs are recognised as an expense in the reporting period in which they are incurred. The carrying

amounts of any inventories held for distribution are expensed when distributed.

Fimanoe costs
Finance costs include:
* finance charges in respect of leases which are recognised in accordance with AASE 16 Leases .

Other operating expenses
Other operating expenses generally represent the day-to-day renning costs incurred in normal operations and include such things
as
= Fuel, light and power
* Repairs and maintenance
® Dther administrative expenses
® Ewpenditure for capital purposes (represents expenditura related to the purchase of assets that are below the
capitalisation threshold of 51,000).

The Department of Health also makes certain payments on behalf of Mallee Track Health and Community Service, These amounts
have been brought to account in determining the operating result far the year, by recarding them as revenae and recording a
correspording expense.

Mon-operating expenses

Other non-operating expenses generally represent expenditune putside the normal operations such as depreciation and
amartisation, and assets and services provided free of charge or for nominal considesation,
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Malkee Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
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Note 3.2 Other economic flows

nza 2023

5'000 $'000
Het gain on disposal of property plant and equipment 1 187
Total net galn on non-financlal assets 91 187
Met loss on dispasal of financal instruments (4] i1]
Total net loss on financial instruments (4] 1]
Share of et profits of joint entities, excluding dividends 52 0
Total share of other economie flows from joint arrangements 52 70
Met gain/{loss) arising from revaluation of long senice liabslity i (28]
Total other gains/{losses) from other economic flows B [ 28]
Total gain from other economic flows 147 228

How we recognise other economic flows
Other economic flows are changes in the volume or value of an asset or liability that do not result from transactions. Other
gainsfibosses) from other economic flows inchede the galns or losses from:

® the revaluation of the present valee of the long service leave liability due to changes in the bond interest rates,

Met gain/f{loss) on non-financial assets
Met gainf{loss) on non-financial assets and liabilities includes realized and unrealised gains and hosses as follows:

" net gainf{loss) on disposal of man-financial asse1s.
Ary gainoor lags an the dizposal of non-linancial assets is recognised a1 the date of dispazal,
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Malkee Track Health and Community Service
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Note 3.3 Employee benefits and related on-costs

2024 2023
5'000 £'000
Current employee benefits and related on-costs
Accrued days aff
Unconditienal and expected to be settled wholly within 12 manths ' 69 43
L] 43
Annual legwe
Uneonditienal and expected 1o be settled whally within 12 manths ' 1178 1,001
Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly after 12 months ™ = d
1,178 1,001
Long senice leave
Unconditional and expected to be settled wholly within 12 months ' 289 226
Unconditional and expected to be settied wholly after 12 months® 1,493 1,569
1,782 1,795
Provisions reloted to employee benefit on-costs
Unconditional and expected 1o be settled within 12 manths ' 239 168
Unconditional and expected to be setiled after 12 months” 217 208
456 ave
Total current employes benefits and related on-costs 3,485 3,215
MNon-current provisions and related on-costs
Conditional long service leave " 258 312
Provisions related to employee benefit an-costs " 36 41
Total non-current employee benefits and related on-costs 294 353
Total employes benefits and related on-costs 3779 3,568

"The amounts disclosed are nominal amounts,
*The amounts disclesed are discownted to present valees.
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Malkee Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

Note 3.3 (a) Employee benefits and related on-costs

2024 2023

5'000 5'000
Current employee benefits and related on-costs
Unconditional accrued days off 2,045 43
Unconditional annual leave entitlements 1321 1,141
Unconditional long senvdce leave entitlements (4] 2,031
Total current employes benefits and related on-costs 3,485 3,215
Mon-current employee benefits and related on-costs
Condithonal long service leave entitlements 294 353
Total non-current employee benefits and related on-costs 254 353
Total employee benefits and related on-costs 3,719 3,568

e

Attributable to:
Employes benefits 3,287 3,151
Provision for related on-costs 492 417
Total employes benefits and related on-costs 779
Note 3.3 (b) Provision for related on-costs movement schedule

2024 2023

5'000 5'000
Carrylng amount at start of year 417 384
Additional provisions recognised Elr 219
Met galn/{loss) arising from revaluation of long sendce liabslity a 14)
Amounts incurred during the year [240] {182}
Carrying amount at end of year 492 417

How we recognise employee benefits

Employes benefit recognition
Employee benefits are accrued for employees in respect of accrued days off, annual leave and long service leave, for services
rendered to the reporting date as an expense during the period the services are delivered.

Mo provision has been made for sick leave 35 all sick leave is non-vesting and it is not considered probable that the average sick
legve taken in the future will be grester than the benefits seerued in the future. A slek leave i Ron-vesting, 3 expene i
recognived in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as gick leave i taken.
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Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
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Annual lesve and sccrued days off

Liabiltes for annual leave and accrued days off are recognised in the provision for employee benefits as ‘current liabilities’
becauze Mallee Track Health and Community Service does not have an unconditional right 1o defer settlements of these liakilities.

Depending on the expectation of the fiming of settlement, liabilities for annual leave and accrued days off are measured at:

s Mominal value = if Mallee Track Health and Community Service expects to whaolly settle within 12 months or
* Present value = If Mallee Track Health and Community Service does not expect 1o wholly settle within 12 months,

Long service leave
The liabdlity for long service leave [L5L) is recognised in the provision for employee benefits.

Unconditional L5L is disclosed in the motes to the financial statements as a current liability even where the Mallee Track Health
and Community Sendce does not expect to settle the liability within 12 months because it will not have the unconditional rght ta
defer the settlernent of the entitbement should an employee take leave within 12 months, An unconditional right arises after a

qualifying perod.

The components of this current L5L liability are measwred at:
¢ Mominal value — if Mallee Track Health and Community Service expects to wholly settle within 12 months or
* Present value = if Mallee Track Health and Community Service does not expect to wholly settle within 12 months.

Conditional L5L is measured at present valwe and is disclosed as a non-current liability. Any gain or loss following revaluation of
the present value of non-current LSL lizbility is recognésed as 3 transaction, except to the extent that a gain or loss arises due 1o
changes in estimations e.g. bond rate movements, inflation rate movements and changes in probabllity factors which are then
recognised as other econamic flows.

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date or when an employee
decides 1o accept an offer of benefits in exchange for the termination of employment,

Prowision for on-costs related to employes benefits
Prowvision for on-costs such as workers compensation and superannuation are recognised separately from employee benefits.
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Mallee Track Health and Cammunity Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

Note 3.4 Superannuation
Paid contribution for the year Contribution Outstanding at Year-end
Total Total Total Total
2024 2023 2024 2023
5'000 5'000 5000 £'000
Defined benefit plans:
Aware Super 17 27 - -
Defined contribution plans:
Auware Super 701 67 - -
Hesta f Other 603 476 - -
Taotal 26 - =

" The basis for determining the level of contributions is determined by the various actuaries of the defined benefit superannuation
plans.

How we recognise superannuation
Employees of Mallee Track Health and Community Service are entitbed to recehve superannuation benefits and it contributes to

both defined benefit and defined contribution plans,

Defined benefit superannuation plans
A defined benefit plan provides benefits based on years of service and final average salary. The amount charged to the

Comprehensive Dperating Statement in réspect of defined benefit cuperannuation plans represents the contributions made by
Mallee Track Health and Community Service 1o the superannuation plans in respect of the senices of current Mallee Track Health
and Community Service’s staff during the reparting period. Superannuation contributions are made to the plans based on the
relewant rules of each plan and are based upon actuarial advice,

Mallee Track Health and Community Service does not recognize any unfunded defined benefit liability In respect of the plans
because the health service has no legal or constructive obligation to pay future benefits relating to its employees; its only
obligation is to pay superannuation contributions as they fall due.

The DTF discloses the State’s defined benefits Habiltes in its disclosure for administered ltems. However superannuation
contributions paid or payable for the reporting pericd are induded as part of employee benefits in the Comprehensive Operating
sravement of Mallee Track Health and Community Service,

Thee narme, details and amounts that have been expensed in relation 1o the major employes superannuation funds and
contributions made by Mallee Track Health and Community Service are disclosed above.

Defined contribution superannuation plans

Defined contribution {i.e. accumulation) superannuation plans expenditure is simply the employer contributions that are paid or
payable in respect of employess who are members of these plans during the reporting peniod. Contributians 10 defined
contribution superannuation plans are expensed when incurred,

The name, details and amounts that have been expensed in relation to the major employee superannuation funds and
contributions made by Mallee Track Health and Community Service are disclosed above,
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Mallee Track Health and Community Service
MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2024

Note 4: Key assets to support service delivery

Mallee Track Health and Community Service controls infrastructure and other investments that are utilised in fulfilling
its objectives and conducting its activities. They represent the key resources that have been entrusted to Mallee Track
Health and Community Service to be utilised for delivery of those outputs.

Structure

4.1 Property, plant & equipment
4.2 Right-of-use assets

4.3 Revaluation surplus

4.4 Depreciation

4.5 Impalrment of assets
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Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

Material judgements and estimates
This section contains the following material judpements and estimates:

Estimating useful life of property,
plant and equiprment

Estimating useful life of right-of-use
assets

Identifying indicators of impairment

Malles Track Health and Community Service assigns an estimated useful life to
each item of property, plant and equipment. This is used to calculate depredation
of the asset. The health service reviews the useful life and deprediation rates of
all assets at the end of each finandal year and where necessary, records a change
i accounting estimate.

The useful life of each right-of-use asset is typically the respective lease term,
except where the health service is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase
option contained within the lease [if any), in which case the useful life reverts 1o
the estimated useful life of the underlying asset.

Malles Track Health and Community Service applies material judgement 1o
determine whether or not it is reasonably certdin to exercise such purchase
options.

At the end of each year, Mallee Track Health and Community Service assesses
impairment by evaluating the conditions and events specific to the health service
that may be indicative of Impairment triggers. Where an indication exists, the
health service tests the asset for impairment.

The health service considers a range of information when performing its
assessment, incuding considering:

= |f am asset's value has declined more than expected based on normal use

= |f a significamt change in techmological, market, economic or legal environment
which adversely impacts the way the health service uses an asset
= |f an asset is obsolete or damaged

® [f the asset has become idle or if there are plans to discontinue or dispose of
the asset before the end of its useful life

= [fthe performance of the asset is or will be warse than initially expected,
Where an impairment trigger exists, the health sepvces applies material
judgement and estimate to determing the recoverable amaount of the asset,
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Note 4.1 Property, plant and equipment

Malles Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

Note 4.1 (a) Gross carrying amount and accumulated depreciation

Land at Fair value - Freshold
Total land at fair value

Bufldings at fadr value
Less accumulated deprecation
Total buildings at fair value

Total land and buildings

Flant and eguipment at fair value
Less aecurmulated deprecation
Total plant and equipment at fair value

Motor vehicles at Fair value
Less accurnulated depreciation
Total motor vehicles at Fair value

Medical equipment at fair value
Less accurnulated deprecation
Total medical equipment at fair value

Computer equipment at fair value
Less accumulated depreciation
Total computer equipment at fair value

Furniture and fittings at falr value
Less accumulated depreciation
Total furniture and fittings at fair value

Total plant, equipment, furniture, fittings and wehicles at fair value

Total property, plant and equipment

2024 2023
5'000 $'000
1,345 588
1,345 688
52,698 36,360
(2,112)
62,698 34,248
64,043 34,936
E —————————— ————
1,486 1,843
(1,202} {1,580}
284 363
228 558
{219} {544}
g 14
1121 1,250
{855) {1,000)
256 250
839 769
{720} {641}
119 128
1,110 1,13%
{525] (617}
585 508

1&53- iﬁ

65,296

36,1590
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Mallee Track Haalth and Community Service
Maotes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

Note 4.2 Right-of-use assets
Note 4.2{a) Gross carrying amount and accumulated depreciation

2024 2023
5'000 5'000
Right of use wehicles at fair value 1,025 T3
Less accumulated depredation [268] [162)
Total right of use vehicles at fair value 756 611
Total right of use vehicles at fair value 756 611
—
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Mallee Track Headth and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

Note 4.2({b) Reconciliations of carrying amount by class of asset

Right-of-use -

Vehicles Total

Maobe £'000 5'000
Balance at 1 July 2022 368 368
Additions 340 340
Depreciation 4.4 197) 197}
Balance at 30 June 2023 d.2 [a) 611 61l
Additions 309 Eli
Disposals (5] 25}
Depreciation 4.4 (123) {139}
Balance at 30 June 2024 4.2 [a) 756 756

How we recognise right-of-use assets

Initial recognition

When a contract is entered into, Mallee Track Health & Community Service assesses if the contract contains or is a lease.
Lindess the lease is considered a short-term lease or 3 lease of a low-value asset [refer to Note 6.1 for further infermation) the
contract gives rise to a right-of-use asset and coresponding lease tiability,

The right-of-use asset is initially measwred at cost and comprises the initial measurement of the comresponding lease Hability,
adjusted fior:
* any lease payments made at or before the commencement date
= gmy initial direct costs incurred and
& an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underying asset or the site on which it
is located, less any lease incentive received.

Mallee Track Health & Community Service presents its right-of-use assets as part of property, plant and equipment as if the asset
was owned by the health service,

Subseguent meassurement

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at fair wvalue, with the exception of right-of-use asset arising from leases with
significantly below-market terms and conditions, which are subsequently measured at cost, less accumulated depredation and
accumulated impalrment bosses where applicable,

Right-of-use assets are also adjusted for cerain remeasurements of the lease liability (for example, when 2 variable lease payment
based on an index or rate becomes effective].

Further information regarding fair value measurement is disclosed in Mote 7.4,
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Note 4.3 Revaluation surplus

Balance at the beginning of the reporting pericd

Revaluation increment

- Land

- Buildings

Balance at the end of the Reporting Period™

* Represented by:
= Land
- Bulldings

Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

2024 2023

Note $'000 $'000
40,443 40,448
4.1 (b) 655 -
4.1 (b) 30,531 %
71,634 40,448
1,085 430
70,549 40,018
71,634 40,448
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Mallee Track Haalth and Community Service
Maotes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

Note 4.4 Depreciation

024 2023
Depreciation 5'000 5'000
Buldings 2,120 2,114
Plant and equipment b a5
Motar vehiclkes 5 &4
kedical equipment 49 a6
Compaiter equiprvent B2 81
Furniture and fittings 52 S8
Total depreciation - property, plant and equipment 24 448
Right-of-use assets
Right of use - motaor wehicles 138 a7
Tml d!mfmhﬂ % rhht_n{_u“ —— $
Total depreciation 2,563 2,545
How we recognise depreciation

All infrastructure assets, buildings, plant and equipment and other non-financial physical assets (excluding items under assets held
for cale, land and investment properties) that have finite weeful ives are depraciated. Depreciation (s generally calculated on a
straight-line basis at rates that allocate the asset's value, less any estimated residual value ower its estimated wseful life.

Right-nf-use assets are depreciated over the lease term or useful life of the underlying asset, whichewer is the shortest, Where a
lease transfers ownership of the underhying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the health serdce antldpates to
exercise a purchase option, the specific right-of-use asset s depreciated over the useful life of the underlying azset.

The following table indicates the expected useful Bves of non-current assets on which the depreciation charges are based.

2024 2023
Busildings -
- Structure shell building fabric 7 to 50 years 25 to 60 years
- Site engineering services and central plant 7to 50 years 20 to 30 years
Central Plant
- Fit out 710 15 years 7 to 13 years
= Trunk reticulated building system 710 18 years 71015 years
Plant and equipment 3 to 20 years 3 1o 20 years
Medical equipment 510 10 years 7 to 10 years
Computers and communication 3 to 10 years 3 to 9 years
Furniture and fitting Jta El}w.!li 3 1o 20 years
Motaor vehickes 5 to 6 years 5 to & years

A5 part of the building valuation, buisding values are separated ino components and each component assessed for its useful life

which i represented abowe,
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Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

Note 4.5: Impairment of assets

How we recognise impairment

At the end of each reporting period, Mallee Track Health and Community Service reviews the carrying amount of its tangible and
intangible assets that have a finite useful life, to determine whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.

The assessment will include consideration of external sources of information and internal sowrces of information.

External sources of information include but are not limited to observable indications that an asset's value has declined during the
period by significantly more than would be expected as 3 result of the passage of time or normal use, Internal sources of
information include but are not limited 1o evidence of chaolescence or physical damage of an asset and significant changes with
an adverse effect on Mallee Track Health and Community Service which changes the way inwhich an asset is used or expected 1o
b used.

If swch an indication exists, an impairment test is carried out. Assets with indefinite useful lives [and assets not yet availabie for
use) are tested anmually for impairment, in addition to where there i an indication that the asset may be impaired.

When performing an impairment test, Mallee Track Health and Community Service compares the recoverable amaount of the
asset, being the higher of the asset's fair value less costs 1o sell and value in use, to the asset’s carrying amount. Any excess of the
aiset's carrying amount over it récoverable amount is I'I:Cﬂﬂlilﬂd irnrmediately in net result, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount,

Where an impairment koss on a revalued asset is identified, this is recognised against the asset revaluation surplus in respect of

the same dass of asset to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the cumulative balance recorded in the asset
revaluation surplus for that class of asset.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an indhividual asset, Mallee Track Health and Community Service
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Mallee Track Health and Community Service did not record any impairment losses in property, plant and equpment for the year
ended 30 June 2024 (30 June 2023 Nil).
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Mallee Track Health and Community Service
MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2024

Note 5: Other assets and liabilities

This section sets out those assets and liabilities that arose from Blallee Track Health and Community Service's
operations

Structure

5.1 Receivables

5.2 Contract Assets

5.3 Poyables

5.4 Contract liabilitles

5.5 Other lobilities

5.6 Non-financial physical assets held for sale
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Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

Material judgements and estimates

This section contains the following material judgerments and estimates:

Mallee Track Health and Community Serdce uses a simplified approach to
Estimating the provision for account for the expected credit loss provision. A provision matri is used,
expected credit losses which coniiders historical experience, external indicators and forward-looking
infarmation to determing expected crodit loss rates.

Where Mallee Track Health and Community Serice has received funding to
construct an identifiable non-financial asset, swch funding is recognised as
Measuring deferred capital grant deferrd capital grant income untd the underlying asset is constructed,

Hieeicrdé Mallee Track Health and Commaunity Sendce applies material judgement when

reasuring the deferred capital grant income balance, which references the
estimated the stage of completion at the end of each financlal year.

Mallee Track Health and Community Service applies material judgement to
mazasure its progress towards satisfying a perfarmance obligation as detailed
: In Moke 2. Where a performance obligation is yet to be satisfied, the health
B g it NS service assigns funds to the outstanding obligation and records this as a
mri;anljlﬂ:lttymﬂﬁmpnnﬁu!pqdnranhehﬁﬂuﬁéiﬂhﬂu
custamer.
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MNote 5.1 Receivables

Current receivables
Contractual

Trade recenabbes
Patient fees
Accroed revenue

Amounts receivable from governments and agencies
Total contractual receivables

Statutory
Met G5T receivable
Total statutory receivables

Total current receivables

Nan-current receivablies
Contractual

Long service leave - Depaniment of Health
Total contractual receivables

Total mon-current recelvables

Total receivables

(7] Financial assets classified as receivables (Mate 7. 1{a))

Total receivables
G5T receivable
Total financial assets classified as recelvables

How wie recognise receivables
Receivables consist of:

Malkze Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

2024 2023
Note $'000 5'000
113 132
29 24
42 4
24 7
208 167
73 142
73 142
281 ang
=
993 942
993 42
993 a42
- ———
1,274 1,251
1,274 1,251
(3) {142}
7.1(a) 1,201 1,109

* Contractual receivables, including debtars that relate to goods and services. These receivables are classified as financial
instruments and are categorised a5 financial assets at amortised cost’, They are initially recognised at fair value plus any
directly attributable transaction costs. The health service holds the contractual receivables with the ohjective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore they are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less any impairment.
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Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Maotes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

= Statutory receivables, including Goodis and Services Tax [G5T]} input tax credits that are recoverable. Statutory recenables
do not arise from contracts and are recognised and measured similarly to contractual receivables (except for impairment],
bt are not elassified as financial instrurments for disclasure purposes, The health sendce applies AASE 9 for indtkal
measurement al the statulory receivables and as 3 result statutory receivables are initially recognized at fair value plus any
directly attributable transaction cost.

Trade debtors are carried at the nominal amounts due for seftlement within 30 days from the date of recognition,

In assessing impairment of statutory (non-contractual] financial assets, which are not financial instruments, professional
judgerment is applied in assessing materiality wsing estimates, averages and other computational methods in sccordance with
AASE 136 Impairment of Assets

Impairment losses of contractual receivablies
Refer to Mote 7.2 [a) for Mallee Track Health and Community Service’s contractual impalrment losses.
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Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

Note 5.2 Contract assets
2024 2023
Mote 000 £'000
Current
Contract ai5ets = 156
Total current contract assets - 156
Total contract assets &.2]a) - 156

Note 5.2(a) Movement in contract assets

2024 2023

5000 5000
Balance at the beginning of the year 156 a1
Add: hdditional costs incurred that are recoverable from the customes - 156
Less: Transfer to trade receivable or cash at bank [156) (81}
Total contract assets - 156

How we recognise contract assets

Contract assets relate 1o the Mallee Track Health and Community Service's right 1o consideration in exchange for goods
transferred to customers for works completed, but nat yet Gilled at the reporting date, The contract assets are transferred
to receivables when the rights become unconditional, at this time an inagice is issued. Contract assets are expected to be
recoverad during the next financial year,
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Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

MNote 5.3 Payables

2024 2023

Note 5'000 5'000
Current payables
Contractual
Trade creditors 1 B39
Accrued salaries and wagos SE0 A6
Accrued expenses o2 58
Amounts payable b governments and agencies 84 385
Deferred capital grant incomea 5.31a) . 134
Total contractual payvabbes 1,647 2,013
Total current payables 1,647 2,013
Total payables 14647 1,013
{i} Financigl Fabilities chessified as payables (Mote 7 1jalf
Total payables Leat 2,013
Daferred grant income [334]
Total financial liabilities classified as payables 7.1(a) 1,647 1£H
How we recognise payables
Payables coraist of:

= Contractial payables, including payables that relate to the purchase of goods and sendces. These payables are classified as
finamtial instruments and measured at amortised cost. Accounts payable and satlaries and wages payvable represent liabilities
for goods and services provided to the Mallee Track Health and Commandty Service prior to the end of the financlal year that
are wnipaid,

= Statutory payables, including Goods and Services Tax [G5T) payable, Statutory payables are recognised and measured
simidlarly to contractual payabbes, but are not classified as financlal Instruments and notincluded In the category of financlal
liabilities at amortised cost, because they do not arse from contracts.

The porma credit terms for accounts payable are usually Bet 30 days,
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Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Fimancial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

Note 5.3(a) Movement in deferred capital grant income

2024 2023

5'000 5'000
Opening balance of deferred grant income 334 133
Grant constderation for capital works received during the year . 248
Deferred grant revenues recognized as revenue due 1o completion of capital works (334) [47]
Closing balance of deferred grant income - 334

How we recognise deferred capital grant income

Grant consideration was received from the Department of Health Victosia to support refurbichment and upgrades within the
residential aged care faclities. There is also deferred grant income relating 1o the Loddon Mallee Rural Health Alliance joint
arrangement. Capital grant income is recognised progresshvely as the asset 15 constructed, since this is the time whien ballee
Track Health and Community Service satisfies its obligations, The progressive percentage of costs incurred s used 10 recognise
incame because this mast closely reflects the percentage of completion of the bullding works. As a result, Malkee Track Health
and Community Service has deferred recagnition of a portion of the grant consideration received as a liability for the
outstanding obligations.
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Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

Note 5.4 Contract liabilities

024 2023

%000 5'000
Current
Contract liabdlities 446 125
Total current contract liabilities 346 125
Total contract liabilities 445 125

Note 5.4{a) Movement in contract liabilities

2024 2023

5'000 &'000
Opening balance of contract liabilities 125 156
Add: Paymenm received for performance obligations yet to be completed during
the period 3,851 3,148
Less: Revenue recognised for the completion of a perfarmance obligation {3,530} {3.179]
Total contract liabilities L 125

How we recognise contract liabilities
Contract liabilities include consideration received in adwance from customers in respect of activity based services. The balance of

contract liabilities was higher than the previous reporting period due toa significant increase in the LMRHA joint ventures income
in advance.

Contract liabilities are derecognised and recorded as revenue when promised goods and services are transferred to the custamer,
Refer to Mote 2.1,

Maturity analysis of payables
Please refer to Note 7.2(b) for the maturity analysis of payables,
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Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

Note 5.5 Other liabilities

2024 2023
Mobe 5'000 £'000
Current monies held it trust
Fatient monies i 11
Refundable accommaodation deposits g 265 5041
Total current monies held in trsst 5,873 5,052
Total other liabilities 56873 5052
* Represented by:
- Cash assels B2 5871 5,052
5873 5,052
How wie recognise other liabilities

Refundable Accommaodation Deposit [RAD)S Accommodation Bond liabilities

RaDs/accommodation bonds are non-interest-bearing depasits made by some aged care residents to Mallee Track Health and
Communety Service upon admission. These deposits are llabilities which fall due and payable when the resident leaves the hame.
As there is no unconditional right to defer payment for 12 months, these liabilites are recorded as current labilithes.

RADYaccommaodation bond Habilities are recorded at an amount equal to the proceeds received, net of retention and any other
amounits deducted from the RAD/accommodation bond in accordance with the Aged Core Act 1997
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Note 5.6 Non-financial physical assets held for sale

Vehicles
Total non-financlal physical assets classified as held for sale

How we recognise non-financial physical assets classified as held for sale

Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

2024 2023
$'000 5'000
14 -

Man-financial physical assets are treated as current and are classified as held for sale if their carmying amount will be recovered
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met anly when the sale is highly
probable, the asset’s sale is expected to be completed within 12 months from the date of classification, and the asset is available

for immediate use in the current condition.

Mon-financial physical assets classified as held for sale are treated as current and are measured at the lower of carrying amount
and falr value less costs of disposal, and are not subject to deprecliation or amortisation.
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Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2024

Note 6: How we finance our operations

This section provides information on the sources of finance wtilised by Mallee Track Health and Community Service
during its operations, along with interest expenses (the cost of barrowings) and other information related to financing
activities of Mallee Track Health and Community Service.

This section includes disclosures of balances that are financial instruments [such as borrowings and cash balances).
Note 7.1 provides additional, specific financial instrument disclosuras.

Structure
6.1 Borrowings

6.2 Cash and cosh equivalents
&.3 Commitments for expenditure
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BMallee Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

Material judgements and estimates

This section containg the following material judgements and extimates:

Determining if a contract is or
contains a bease

Determining If a lease meets the
short-term or low value asset lease
exermption

Discount rate applied to future
leaze payments

Agsegsing the lease term

Mallee Track Health and Community Service applies material judgement to
determine if a contract is or contains a lease by considering if the health service:

® has the right-to-use an identified asset
= has the right to obtain substantially all economic benefits from the use of
the leased asset and
® can decide how and for what purpose the asset is used throughout the
lease.
tallee Track Health and Community Service applies material judgement when
determining if a lease meets the short-term or low value lease exemption criteria.

The health service estimates the fair value of leased assets when new. Where the
estimated fair value is less than 510,000, the health service applies the low-value
lease exemptian,

The health service also estimates the lease term with reference to remaining
lease term and period that the lease remains enforceable. Where the enforceable
lease period s less than 12 months the health service apglies the short-term lease
exemption.

Mallee Track Health and Community Service discounts its |ease payments using
the interest rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for the health service's lease arrangements, Mallee
Track Health and Community Service wses its incremental borrowing rate, which is
the amount the health service would have to pay to borrow funds necessary to
obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions, For leased vehides, the
impdlicit interest rate is 1.95%.

The kease term represents the non-cancellabie period of a lease, combined with
periods coverad by an option 1o extend or terminate the lease if ballee Track
Health and Community Serdlce is reasonably certalin to exercise such options.

bdallee Track Health and Community Serdce determines the likelihood of
exercising such options on a lease-by-lease basis through consideration of various
factors imcluding:

= |f there are significant penalties 1o terminate (or not extend), the health
senviece Is typlcally reasonably certain to extend {or not terminate) the kease.

# |f any leasehold improvements are expected to have a significant
remaining walue, the health service is typically reasonalbly certain 10 extend
(or not terminate] the lease.

* The health service considers historical lease durations and the costs and
business disruption to replace such leased assets.
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Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

Note 6.1 Borrowings

024 2023

Mote 5'000 5'000
Current borrowings
Lease liabilig " 6.1 (a} 309 185
Advances from government '™ 38 ag
Total current borrowings 347 223
MNon-current borrowings
Lease Habiliyy " 6.1 [a) 462 427
Advances from government ™ 15 a3
Total non-current borrowings 477 476
Total borrowings B24 699

"Secured by the assets leased.
“These are arranged in a manner to fund solar panels for a loan term of 5 years which bears no interest,

How we recognise borrowings

Borrowings refer to ineresting bearing liabilities mainly raised from VicFleet vehicle lease liabilities and ather non interest:
bearing arrangements with the Department of Health Victoria.

Initial recognition
All borrowings are initially recognised at fair value of the consideration recehved, bess directly attributable transaction oosts, The

measurEment basis subsequent 10 initial recognition depends on whether the Mallee Track Health and Community Service has
categorised its liabiity as either ‘financial abilities designated at fair value theough profit or loss’, or financial liabdities at
‘amartised cast”,

Subsequent measurement

Sulbsequent to initial recognition, interest bearing borrowings are measured at amortised cost with any difference between the
initial recognised amount and the redemption value being recognised in the net result over the perod of the borrowing using the
effective Interest method. Mon-nterest bearing bormowings are measured at fair value through profit or loss’,

Maturity analysis
Please refer to Mote 7.2(8] for the maturity analysis of borrewings,

Defaults and breaches
During the current and prior year, there were no defaults and breaches of any of the loans,
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ballee Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

Note 6.1 (a) Lease liabilities

Mallee Track Health and Cormmunity Service's lease liabilities are summarised below:

2024 023

$000 5000
Total undiscounted lease Hahbilities 795 G627
Less unexpired finance expenses [24) {15}
Met lease liabilities 771 612

The following table se1s out the maturity analysis of lease liabilities, showing the undiscounted lease payments to be made
after the reporting date,

2024 2023

57000 $000
Mot longer than ane year 310 185
Longer than one year but not longer than five years 485 442
Minimum future lease llability 795 627
Less unexpired finance expenses (24 _{15)
Present value of lease liability 771 612
* Represented by:
- Current lizbilities 309 185
= Mon-current abilithes 462 427

77l Bl2

How we recognise lease liabilities

A lease is defined as a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right for Mallee Track Health and Community Serice to
use an assel for @ period of time in exchange for payment.

To apply this definition, Mallee Track Health and Community Service ensures the contract meets the following criteria:
* the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract or implicithy specified by
being identified at the time the asset is made available to Mallee Track Health and Community Service and far which the
supplier does not hawe substantive substitution rights
# Mallee Track Health and Community Serice has the right Lo obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use
of the identified aszet throughout the period of use, considering its rights within the defined scope of the cantract
and Malkee Track Health and Community Sendice has the right 1o direct the use of the identified asget throughowt the
period of use and
* Mallee Track Health and Community Service has the right to take decisions in respect of *how and for what purpose’ the
asset is used throughout the period of use.

Mallee Track Health and Community Service’s lease arrangements consist of the following:

Type of asset leased

3 years
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ballee Track Health and Community Service
Hotes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024
Note 6.1 (a) Lease liabilities {continued)

All leases are recognised on the balance sheet, with the exception of low value leases (less than 510,000) and short term
leases of less than 12 months, The following low value, short term and variable lease payments are recognised in profit or loss:

Type of payment Description of payment
- . Leases where the underlying asset’s fair value, when new, is ::::M |
o ml gl no more than $10,000. oL
Hardware

Initial measurement

The lease liabdlity is indtfally measured at the present value of the lease payments unpaid at the commencement date,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily determinable or Mallee Track Health and
Commundty Sendces iIncremental borrowing rate, Ouwr leasze liability has been discounted by the rate of 1.95%.

Leaze payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

= fixed payments (including in-substance fived payments) less any lease incentive receivable
* variable payments based on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date
= amounts expected to be payable under a residual valoe guarantes

* payments arising from purchase and termination options reasonably certain to be exercised.

These terms are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing contracts. Extension and termination options
held are exercisable anly by the health service and not by the respective lessor.

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circurmstances that create an ecanomic incentive to
ExErcise an exension aptlion, or not exercise a termination option, Extension options (or periods after termination options)
are only included in the lease term and lease lability if the lease is reasonably certain o be extended (or not terminated),

The assessment is reviewed if a signiflcant event or a significant change in circumstances ocours wiich affects this assessment
ared that is within the contral of the lessee.

Dwiring the current financial year, the financial effect of revising lease terms to reflect the effect of exercising extension and
termination options was an increase in recognised lease liabifities and right-of-use assets of SHil.
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ballee Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

Note 6.1 (a) Lease liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent ta initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is

remeasured to reflect any reassessment or madification, or if there are changes in the substance of fixed payments.

When the lease Eability is remeasured, the correspanding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit and lass if
the right of use asset is already reduced 1o zeno,

@ MTHCS Part B - Financial Reports 2023-2024



Malkee Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

MNote 6.2 Cash and cash equivalents

2024 2023

MNote 5'000 5'000
Cash on hand [excluding monles held in trust) 1 1
Cash at bank [excluding monies held in trust) 1,871 902
Cash at bank - CBS |excluding maonies held in trust) 4,666 5,983
Total cash held for operations 6,538 6,886
Cash at bank - CBS {monies held in trust) 5,873 5,052
Total cash held as monies in trust 5873 5,052
Total cash and cash eguivalents 7.1 (a) Hlﬂl iilsﬂs

How whe recognise cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents recognised on the balance sheet comprise cash an hand and in banks.

Cash and cash equivalents are eld for the purpose of meeting short term cash commitments rather than for imestment purposes
and are resdily convertible to krown amounts of cach and are sulbject ta insignificant sk of changes in valws.,

For cash flow statement presentation purposes, cach and cash equivalents include bank averdeafts, whidh are included as
liabilities on the balance sheet. The cash flow statement Includes monles held in trust.
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Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
far the financial year ended 30 June 2024

Note 6.3 Commitments for expenditure

2024 2023

%'000 5'000
Mon-cancellable short term and low value lease commitments
Less than one year a5 71
Longer than ane year butl not longer than five years 144 243
Total non-cancellable short term and low value lease commitments 225 14
Total commitments for expenditure |exclusive of G5T) 2259 314
Less G5T recoverable from Australian Tax Office {21} (29)
Total commitments for expenditure (exclusive of G5T) 208 285

Future lease payments are recognised on the balance sheet, refer to Note 6.1 Borrowings.

Howe we disclose owr commitments
Cur commitments relate to shart term and low value leases.

Short term and low value leases

Mallee Track Health and Community Service discloses shart term and low value lease commitments which are excluded from the
measurement of ight-of-use assets and lease liabilities. Refer ta Note 6.1 for further infarmation.
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Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2024

Note 7: Risks, contingencies and valuation
uncertainties

Mallee Track Health and Community Sendce s exposed to risk from its acthdties and outside factors. In additlon, [t i= often
necessarny to make judgements and estimates associated with recognition and measwement of items in the financial
statements, This section sets out financial instrumem specific information, (including exposures to financial risks) as well as
thase items that are contingent in nature or require 3 higher level of judgement 1o be applied, which for the health service s
related mainly to fair value determination.

Structure

7.1 Financial instruments

7.2 Fimancial risk management objectives and policies
7.3 Contingent assets and contingent liabilities

7.4 Fair value determination

Material judgements and estimates

This section contains the following material judpements and estimates:

Fair walue is measured with reference to highest and best use, that is,
the use of the asset by a market participant that is physically
passible, legally permissiile, finandally feasible, and which results in
the highest value, or to sell it to another market participant that

wiowld wee the same asset in [ts highest and best use.
Measuring fair value of non-financial assets
In derermining the highest and best use, Mallee Track Health and

Community Service it auurmed the current use (S it higheot and
best use, Accordingly, characteristics of the health senvice's assets are
considered, including condition, location and any restrictions an the
wse and disposal of such assets.
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Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

Material judgements and estimates (continued)

Measuring fair value of non-financial assets

8 MTHCS

Mallee Track Health and Community Serdlce uses a range of valuation
techniques to estimate fair value, which incude the following:

* Market approach, which uses prices and other relevant
information generated by market transactions involving identical
or comparable assets and liabilities. The fair value of Mallee Track
Health and Community Service’s specialised land is measured
using this approach.

= Cost approach, which reflects the amount that would be
required to replace the service capacity of the asset (referred to
as current replacement cost). The fair value of Mallee Track
Health and Community Service's |specialised buildings, furniture,
fittings, plant, equipment and vehicles] are measured using this
aporoach,

* Income approach, which converts future cash flows or income
and expenses 1o 3 single undiscounted amount. Malles Track
Health and Community Service does not this use approach to
measure fair value.

The health service selects a valuation technique which is considered
mast appropriate, and for which there is sufficient data available to
reasure falr value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

Subsequently, the health service applies material judgement 1o
categorise and disclase such assets within a fair value hierarchy,
which includes:

= Level 1, using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets that the health service can acoess at
measurement date, Mallee Track Health and Community Service
does not categorise any fair values within this lewel,

= Level 2, inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observabbe for the asset, either directly or indirectly.
Mallee Track Health and Community Service does not categorise
any fair values in this lewvel,

= Level 3, where inputs are unobservable. Mallee Track Health
and Commaunity Service categorises specialised land, specialised
buildings, plant, equipment, furniture, fittings, vehicles and right-
of-use wehiches in this level
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hallee Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

Note 7.3: Contingent assets and contingent liabilities

At the date of this report, the Board are not aware of any contingent assets ar liabilities.

How we measure and disclose contingent assets and contingent Habilities
Contingent assets and contingent Habilities are not recognised in the balance sheet but are disclosed and, If quantifiable, are

measured at nominal value,
Contingent assets and liabilities are presented inclusive of GST receivable or pavable respectively,

Contingent assets
Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events, whose existence will be confirmed cnly by the accurrence or

non-oocurrence of one or mare uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the health senvice.

These are classified as either quantifiable, where the potential economic benefit is known, or non-guantifiable.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are:
= possible obligations that arise from past events, whose existence will be confirmed anly by the ocowrence ar non-
aecurrence of one or more uncertaln future events not wholly within the contral of the health service or

= present obligations that arise from past events but are not recognised because:
- It s ot probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligations or
- the amount of the obligations cannot be measured with sufficdent reliability.

Contingent liabilities are also classified as either quantifiable or non-quantifiable,
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Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

Mote 7.4: Fair Value Determination

How we measure fair value
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or pabd to wransfer a lability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date,

The following assets and liabilities are carried an fair value:

* Property, plant and equipment
= Right-of-use sssety
* Lease liabiities,

In addition, the fair value of other assets and liabilities that are carried at amortised cost, also need 10 be determined for
disclosure,

Valuation hierarchy

In determining fair values a number of inputs are wsed. To increase consistency and comparability in the financial statements,
these inputs are categorised into three levels, also known as the fair value hierarchy. The levels are as follows:

® Level 1—quoted [unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

= Lewel 2 =vwaluation technigques for which the lowest level input that (s significant to the falr value measurement is directly
or indirectly observable and

= |evel 3 =valuathon technigues for which the lowest level input that is sipnificant to the falr value measurement is
unbbservable,

Mallee Track Health and Community Service determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation [based on the lowest level input that is significant to the falr value measurement as a whole) at the end
aof each reporting period. There were changes In valuation techndgues for some specialised land and specialised bulldings assets
from Lewel 3 classifications to Level 2 classifications throughout the period to 30 fune 2024,

Mallee Track Health and Community Service monitors changes in the fair value of each asset and Bability through relevant data
sources to determine whether revaluation s required. The Yaluer-General Victoria (VGV] is Mallee Track Health and Commumity
Service’s independent valuation agency for property, plant and equipment.

Identifying unobservable inputs (level 3] fair value measurements

Level 3 fair value inputs are unobservable valuation inputs for an asset or liahility. These inputs require significant judgement and
assumptions in deriving fair value for both finandial and non-financial assets.

Unobservable Inputs are used to measure fair valee to the extent that relevant observable inputs are not avallable, thereby
allowing for sitwations in which there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or Hability at the measurement date, However,
the fair walue measurement objective remains the same, Le., an exit price at the measurement date from the perspective of a
miarket participant that halds the asset or owes the liability, Therefore, unobservable inputs shall reflect the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liabiity, including assumptions abot risk,

@ MTHCS Part B - Financial Reports 2023-2024



Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Motes 1o the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

Note 7.4 (a) Fair value determination of non-financial physical assets

" Total carrying Falir valus measurement at end of reporting
amount period using:
30 June 2024 Lewel1" Level2" Level 3"
MNota 5000 5000 5'000 00

Spacinlised Land 1345 - 45 550
Total land at falr valee 4.1 ja] 1,345 - 795 550
Specialised buildings 62 BaE : 2 B0 5o gEA
Total bulldings at falr value 4.1 [a) 62538 . 2810 LR
Plant and equipmaent at fair valee 4.1 (8 284 - - 84
Mator wehicles at fakr value 4,1 fa) § |
bedical eguepment at fair value 4.1 (a) 256 - - 155
Computer equipment at fair value 4.1 (a] 119 - - 119
Fumiture and fictings at fair value 4.1 [a) 585 - - 585
Total plant, equipment, furniture, fittings and vehicles at
fair walue 1253 - - 1353
Right of wse assets at falr value - vehicles 4.2 (a) 756 - - 156
Tetal right-of-use assets at fair value 756 - - 756
Vehiches 5.6 14 - - 14
Total non-financial assets held for sale 14 - - 14
Total non-financial physical assets ot fair value 6B, DGE . 3,505 624561

Total th‘_l'uﬁ[ Fa'r vake measuremant at end of r-pm'ﬂrl

amoiant period using:
30 bune 2023 Level1" Level2' Level 3"
5" 000 5000 5'000 5'000

Specislised land 688 - - 688
Total land at fair valee 4.1 [a) BEE - - BER
Spetislived buildings 3 B - - 34,248
Total bulldings at falr value 4.1 {al 34248 - - 34,248
Plant, equipment and vehicles at fadr value 4.1 fa) 353 a . 153
bAcrkor vehicles at fakr value 4.1 [a) 11 14
Medical eguiprmant &t Tair value 4.1 (a) 250 - - 50
Camputer equipment at fair value 4.1 (&) 128 - - 128
Fufmitre snd ﬂ[‘[lngiMl'llrualuE 4.11a) 508 - - 508
Total plant, equipment, furnifure, fittings and wehlcles at
falr valup 1,263 - - 1,363
Right of uwse assets at fair valee - wehicles 4.2 (a) E11 - . Bl
Total right-of-use assets at falr value L1 = z B1L
Vehides 5.6 - 2 - -
Total non-finamcial sssets held for sale . . . .
Total non-finamcial physical assets at fair value 36 210 - - 36 810

'Classified in accordance with the fair valse fieranchy.

@ MTHCS Part B - Financial Reports 2023-2024



ballea Track Health and Commuamity Service

Mates to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

How we measure fair value of non-financial physical assets
Thie fair value measurement of non-financial ph-'f!-l-ﬂl FLLEEE Dansiders the markel panicipant’s Iblllbf LD LS thee B9S2 N itS HHHI. snd bedst

usg, of o sell it ko another market pansdpant that would use the Same 35521 in s highest and best wse.

Judgemants about highest and best use must consider the characteristics of the assets concerned, including restrictions on the use and
dizpasal of assets arsing from the aset’s physical nature and any applicable legislatise fcontractual arrangements,

BAaBes Track Health and Community Service has assurmed the current use of a nan-financial phosical asset & ks highest and best use unless
rarket of other factons suggest that a different use by market participants would maximbse the value of the asset.

Thearatical cpportunities that may be available in relation to the assetis] are not considered wnkil i§ & virtwalky certain that amy restrictions
will po longer apply. Therefore, unless otherwise disclosed, the curnent use of these non-financial physical assets will be their highest and
Bt e,

Specialised land and specialised buildings

Specialised land & measured at fair value with regard 1o the propemy™s highest and best use after due consideration is made far any kegal or
physical restrictions impased on the asset, public annauncements of commitments made in relation (o the intended use of the asset

The market approach s akso used for speciallsed Lland although it s adjusted for the community service obligation (C50) to reflect the
spacialised nature of the assets being walwed. Specialised assets contadn significant, unobsenable adjustments; therefore, these assets ane
classified as Level 3 under the market based direct comparison approach,

Tha CS0 adjuitment raflects the values assessment of the impact of restrictions associated with an asset to the exterit that is also equally
apolicable to market participants. This approach is in kght of the highest and best use consideration required for fair value measrameant and
considers the wse of the asset that is physically possible, legally permissibla and financially feasible. As adjustments of £50 are considered as
significant unobsarvable Inputs, specialised land would be classified as Level 3 assats.

For Malles Track Health and Community Senvice, the depreciated replacement cost methad is used for the majority of specialised buildings,
adpusting for the assooated depreciation. As depreciation adjustments are considered as significant and unobservable inputs in nature,
specialized buldings sre ¢lassified e Level 3 fas (a0 value measunements,

&n indepandent valuation of Malles Track Health and Commenity Service’s specialised land and specialised buildings was perfarmed by the
Valuer-Ganaral Victonia, The effactive date of the valuation is 30 June 2024
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Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
far the financial year ended 30 luse 2024

Vehides
The Malles Track Health and Cammunity Service acquires new wehicles and 3t times diposes of them before completion of ther economic

life. The process of acguisition, use and disposal in the market is managed by the health service who set refmant depreciation rates during
user to reflect the consumption of the wehicles. As a rasult, the fair value of wehickes does not differ materiadly fram the carmping amount

Furniture, fittings, plant and equipment

Furniture, fittings, plant and equipment |including medical equipment, computers and communication equipment) are held at carrying
amount jcurrent replacemant cost], When plant and eguipment is specialised in use, such that it is rarely sold other than as part of a going
camcern, the current replacement cost s used to estimate the fadr value, Unless there is market evidence that current replacement costs are
significantly different from the original acquisition cost, i€ is considerad unlikely that cemeant replacement cost will be materially diffarent
fram i existing cannying Amount
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Mallee Track Health and Community Service
MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2024

Note 8: Other disclosures

This section inchedes additional material diselosures required by accounting standards or otherwise, for the understandsng of
this financial reposrt,

Structure

8.1 Reconciliation of net result for the yeor to net cash flow from operating activities
B.2Z Responsible persons

8.3 Remuneration of executives

8.4 Related parties

8.5 Remuneration of ouditors

8.6 Events occurring after the balonce sheet date

B.7 loint arrongements

8.8 Equity

8.9 Economic dependency

@ MTHCS Part B - Financial Reports 2023-2024



Malkze Track Health and Community Service

Maotes to the Financial Statements

for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

Note 8.1 Reconciliation of net result for the year to net cash flows from operating activities

Met result for the year

Man=cash movements:

[Gain}/Loss on sale or disposal of non-financial assets
Depreciation of non-current J45e1s

Share of net results in associates

[Gain)/Loss on revaluation of long service leave liakility
Discount (interest] / expense on loan

Mowvements in Assets and Liabilities:
[Ingrease)/Decrease in receivables and contract assets
[Increase}fDecrease in inventories
(Increase)/Decreace in pregaid expenses
Increase|{Detrease} In payables and contract liabilitkes
Inerease(Decrease) in employes benefits
Increasef{Decrease} in other liabilities

Met cash inflow from operating activities

2024 2023

Note 5'000 $'000
{2,793} {912}
3.2 {91) {187)
4.4 1,563 2,545
{40} -
3.2 (8) (28}
3.2 a 1
133 (377
{3} 57
94 {18)
{as) 605
219 172
(3} (3}
30 1,855
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Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024
Note 8.2 Responsible persons

Inaccordance with the Ministerial Directions isswed by the Assistant Treasurer under the Finaonciol Manogement Act 1934, the

following disclosures are made regarding responsible persons for the reporting period,

The Homourable Mang-Anne Thomas MP:
Minister for Health
Pinister for Health Infrastructure
Minister for Ambulance Senvces

The Honourable Ingrid Stitt MP:
Minlster for Bental Health
Minister for Ageing
Minister for Multicuttural Affairs

The Homourable Gabrielle Willlams b#:
PAinister for bental Health
Minister for Ambulance Services

The Homourabile Lizey Blandthorn MP:
Minister for Children
Minister fior Disability

Governing Boards
John Papatheohari - resigned as Board Chair 24 Moy 2023
Mary Rydberg - appointed a3 Board Chair 25 Nov 2023
Frank Piscioneri
Jayee Lynch
Mick McDonald
Alexander Look
Carol Mioduchoski
Eatheyn hunro

Accountable Officers

Tracey Wilson (Chief Executive Officer - Seconded from Mildura Base Public Hosgital]

Dr. Frances Peart (Chief Executive Officer)

Period

1 Dl 2022 - 30 Jun 2024
5 Dec }I22 - 30 Jun 2024
2 Oct 2023 - 30 Jun 2024

2 Ot 2023 =« 30 Jun 2024
2 Oct 2023 - 230 Jun 2024
2 Oct 2023 - 30 Jun 2024

1Jul 2022 - T Ot 20323
5 Dec 2022 - 2 Oct 2023

2 Ot 2023 - 30 Jun 2024
2 Oct 2023 - 30 Jun 2024

1 Jul 2023 - 30 Jun 2024
1 Jul 2023 - 30 Jun 2024
1 Jul 2023 - 30 Jun 2024
1 Juil 2023 - 30 Jun 2024
1 Jul 2023 - 30 Jun 2024
1 Jul 2023 - 30 Jun 20204
1 Jul 2023 - 30 Jun 2024
1 Jul 2023 - 30 Jun 2024

1Jul 2023 - B Oct 2023
9 Oct 2023 - 20 Jun 2024
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Malkee Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

Note 8.2 Responsible persons (continued)

Remuneration of Responsible Persons
The number of Responsible Persans is shown in their relevant income bands:

2024 2023
Income Band M MNa
0,000 - 59,999 ] 8
5140,000 - 5149,9599 1 2
6210,000 - $219,559 2 1
Total Mumbers 9 g9

04 2023
$'000 %'000

Total emuneration received or due and receivable by Responsible Persons from the
reporting entity amounted to: 183

I3

Ampunis relating 1o Responsible Ministers are reported within the State's Annual Financial Report,
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Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

Note 8.3 Remuneration of executives

The number of executive officers, other than kinisters and the Accountable Officer, and their total remuneration during the
reporting period are shown in the table below. Total annwalised employee eguivalent provides a measure of full time equivalent
executive officers over the reporting period,

Remuneration of executive officers Total Remuneration
fincluding Key Management Personnel disclosed in Mote 8.4) 2024 2023

5'000 5'000
Short-term benefits 06 Err
Post-employment benefits il 37
Oiher long-term benefits 49 12
Total remuneration’ 386 426
Total number of executives 5
Total annualised employee equivalent” 2.0 24

| The tatal number of executive officers ncludes persons who meet the definithon of Key Management Personnel (KMP) of Mallee
Track Health and Community Services under AASE 124 Reloted Porty Discloswres and are also repoarted within Mote 8.4 Related
Parties,

* Annualised employee equivalent is based on working 38 ordinary hours per week over the reporting period.

Remuneration comprises employee benefits in all forms of consideration paid, payable or provided in exchange for services
rendered, and is disclosed in the following categories:

Short-term Employee Benefits

Salaries and wages, annual leave or sick leave that are usually paid or payable on a regular basls, as well a5 non-monetary benefits
such as allowances and free or subsidised goods or sendces.

Post-employment Benefits
Pensions and other retirement benefits paid or payable on a discrete basls when employment has ceased.

Other Long-term Benefits
Long service leave, other long-service benefit or deferred compensation,
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Mallee Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

Note 8.4: Related parties

The Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer of Mallee Track Health and Community Services are deemed to be KEMPs.

ENIPs Position Title

John Papatheohari Chair of the Board - resigned as Chair 24 Nav 2023

Mary Rydberg Chair of the Board - appointed as Chair 25 Mow 2023

Frank Piscioneri Board Member

Joyee Lynch Board Member

Alexander Look Board Member

Mick MeDanald Baard Member

Caro! Mioduchowskl Board MMember

Kathryn Munro Board Member

Dr. Frances Peart Chief Executive Dfficer - appointed 9 Cet 2023

Tracey Wilson Acting Chief Executive Officer - departed & Oct 2023

Dr. Frances Peart Acting Executive Director of Nursing - resigned & Oct 2023

Micole Magnisalis Acting Executive Director of Nursing - appointed 9 Oct 2023, resigned 22 Oct 2023
Loretta Creewy Acting Executive Director of Mursing - appointed 23 Oct 3023, resigned 17 Dec 2023
Rosermary Cattanach Executive Director of Mursing and Midwifery - appointed 18 Dec 2023

Lymdal bunra Director of Community Servites

Tracey Wilson had been seconded from Mildura Base Public Hospital during this time as Acting Chéef Executive Officer.

The compensation detailed befow excludes the salaries and benefits the Portfalio Ministers receive, The Minister’s remuneration
amd allowances is set by the Parffomentary Salorles and Superanrnuotion Act 1968 , and ks reported within the State’s Annual
Fimancial Report.

2024 2023

$'000 £'000
Compensation - KMPs
Short-term Employee Benefits' a7 502
Post-employment Benefits a9 46
Dther Long-term Benefits 53 71
Termination Benefits - 53
Total * 579 677

"Total remuneration paid to KMPs employed as a contractor during the reporting period through accounts payable has been
reported under short-term employee benefits,

* KBAPs are also reported in Mote 8.2 Responsible Persons or Mote 8.3 Remuneration of Executives,
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Malkee Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

Note 8.4: Related parties [continued)

Significant transactions with government related entities

Malles Track Health and Cammunity Serice received funding from the Department of Health of 58,805 m (2023: 59,141 m) and
indirect contributions of 50.134 m {2023: 50,295 m). Balances recallable as at 30 June 2024 are 50,334 m (2023: 50385 m).

Other State Government grants indudes 50,730 m (2023: 51.067 m) fram Dental Health Services Victoria and 50,638 m {2023:
20,788 m} from Department of Education and Training.

Expenses incurred by Malles Track Health and Community Service in delivering serdces and outputs are in accordance with
HealthShare Victoria requirements. Goods and services including procurerment, diagnostics, patient meaks and multi-site
operational support are provided by other Victarian Health Service Providers on commercial terms,

Professional medical indemnity insurance and other insurance products are obtained from the Victoran banaged Insurance
Authority.

The Standing Directions of the Assistant Treasurer require the Mallee Track Health and Community Service to hold cash (in
excess of working capital) in accordance with the State of Victoria's centralised banking arrangements, All borrawings are
required to be sourced from Treasury Corporation Victaria unless an exemption has been approved by the Minister for Health
aned the Treasurer.

Transactions with KMPs and other related parties

Given the breadth and depth of State government activities, related parties tranzact with the Victarlan public sector in 2 manmer
consistent with other members of the public e.g. stamp duty and other government fees and charges. Further employment of
processes within the Victorian public sector occur on terms and conditions consistent with the Public Administration Act 2004
aned Codes of Conduct and Standards issued by the Vietorian Public Sector Commission, Procurement processes ooour on terms
and conditlons consistent with the Healthbhare Victoria and Victorian Government Procurement Board requirements.

Outside of normal citlzen type transactions with Mallee Track Health and Community Service, there were no related party
trandactions that invalved key management personnel, their close family members or their personal business interests, No
provision has been required, nor any expense recognised, for impairment of receivables from related parties. There wene no
related party transactions with Cabinet Ministers required to be disclosed in 2024 {2023: nane},

There were na related party transactions required to be disclosed far the Mallee Track Health and Community Senvice Board of
Directars, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Directors in 2024 (2023 none).
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Malkze Track Health and Community Service
Motes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

MNote 8.5: Remuneration of auditors

2024 2023

5'000 5'000
Victorian Auvditor-General's Office
Audit of the financial statements P 13
Total remuneration of audivors 27 18

Note B.6: Events occurring after the balance sheet date

There are no events oocurring after the Balance Sheet date.
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flallee Track Health and Community Service
Nates to the Financial Statemanis
far the financial vear ended 30 June 2024

Mote B.7 Joint arrangements
Dwnership Interest
Principal Activity 2024 2023
% %
Loddon Mallee Rural Health Alliance  Provision of Information Technology Services 4.76 4.54

Mallee Track Health and Cormmunity Services nterest in assets and Rabilities of the abowve joint arrangement (s detailed bolow,
The armounts are included in the financial statements under their respective categories:

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Total non-current assets

Total assets

Current labllities
Payabdes

Other Current Liabilities
Total current Habilities

Total liabilities

Met assets

Equity
Acoumulated surplus

Total equity

2024 2023
$'000 $'000
502 645
111 94
55 132
1,068 871
37 33
37 38
1,105
260 305
392 193
652 488
652 498

453 411

453 411
453 411
E—

Part B - Financial Reports 2023-2024



Mallee Track Health and Community Serdce
Naotes to the Financial Statemants
for the financial year ended 30 Jumne 2024

MNote 8.7 Joint arrangements

Mallee Track Health and Cormmunity Sorvices interest (n revenues and expenses resulting from joint armngernents are
odetalled Delow:

2024 2023

$'D00 £'000
Rewenue and income from transactions
Operating sctivities B74 738
Mon-operaling activities 62 24
Total revenuve and Income fram transactions 936 762
Expenses from trandactions
Other cxpenses Trom continuing operations o] G700
Depreciation 13 10
Total expenses from trandactions 911
Met result from transactions 15 v

Contingent labilities and capital commitmants
There are no kntwn contingent liab#litkes or capital commétments held by the joint arrangements at balance date.
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Malles Track Health and Communily Sendioe
Motes to the Financial Statements
for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

Note 8.8: Equity

Contributed capital

Contributions by owners [that is, contributed capital and its repaymient) are treated as equity transactions and, therefore, do not
form part of the income and expenses of the Mallee Track Health and Community Serdice.

Transfers of met assets arising from adminstrative restructurings are treated as distributions to or contributions by owners,
Transfers of met liabilities arising from administrative restructurings are treated as distributions to owners,

Other transfers that are in the natwre of contribations or distributions or that have been designated as contribuwted capital ane
also treated as contributed capital,

General purpose surplus

The general purpase reserve represents funds set aside by Mallee Track Health and Community Senvice for specific perpose,
where the funds have been internally generated,

Property, plant and equipment revaluation surplus

The property, plant and equipmaent revaluation surplus arlses an the revaluation of infrastructure, land and bulldings, The
revaluation sunplus s not normally transferred to the sccumulated surplusesfdeficits] on derecognise of the relevant asset.

Naote 8.9: Economic dependency

Blallee Track Health and Community Services is a public hizalth service governted and managed in accordance with the Hegalth
Services Act 1988 and its results form part of the Victortan General Government consolidated financial position, Mallee Track
Health and Community Services provides cssential services and is predominately dependent on the continued financial support of
the State Government, particularly the Department of Health, and the Commonwealth funding via the Notiona! Healfth Reform
Agrevment (NHAAL The State of Victoria plans to continue Health Service operations and on that basis, the financial statements
have been prepaned on & poing concerm basks.
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